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Monday, February 1ll, 1946.

Congress of the United States,
Joint Committee on the Investigation
of Pearl Harbor Attack,
Washington, D. C.
The Joint Committee met, pursuant to adjournment, at
10:00 A.M., in the Caucus Room (room 318), Senate Office
Building, Senator Alben W. Barkley (chairman), presiding.
Present: Senators Barkley (chairman), George, Lucas,
Ferguson and Brewster,
Representatives Ccoper (vice chailrman), Clark, Murphy,

Gearhart and Keefe.
Also present: Seth V. Richarison, General Counsel;
Samuel H. Kaufman, Assoclate General Counsel, and John E.

Masten, of counsel, for the Joint Committes.




182

Y 0 ACTOMIHEAW JJAT 4 QRAW

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

4

25

| 11,109

f The Vice Chairman: The ocrmmittee will pleases be in order,

| Does counsel have anything at this time to present?

Mr. Rqchardson: No.

1the Vice Chairman: Captaln, do you have anything you
desire to present before the examinatlon is resumed?

Captain Kramer: No, 8ir, in the absen~e of Senator
Brews ter, unless he wants any further statement.

Senator Ferguson: I will ask ycu some questions about that.

Captain Kru mer: All right, sir,
1 The Vice Chairman: Senator Ferguscn of Michigan will
L inquire at this point, Captain.'
Captain Kramer: All right, sir.

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN ALWIN D, KRAMER
(resumed)

Senator Ferguson: As I understand 1t, Senator Brewster

|| 18 not going to be here this morning and that is why I will

E*give you an opportunity tec exnlain what he left rather up in
| the alr on Saturday.
| Cantain Kramer: Yes, sir.
Senator Ferguson: As I reocall, you told Senator Brewster
that you had not read all or parts of the so-called Halsey --

I will refer to it as that -- memorandum or the Safford let-

ter and Halsey memorandum.

i Captain Kramer: That 1s correct, sir,
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|| ¥itness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson
1
o | Senator Ferguson: And he indiocated that 1t was somewhat
{‘ 1 || hard for him to understand that a man would have that 1n his
4 possession so long and show it to sever al people, three peo-
« |l ple, and not read any part of 1t. If you will recall, I
g asked you some questions about a conversstlon with Admiral
» || ¥ilkinson the last time that I examined you and I asked ycu
8 | for the complete conversation that you had with him and as I
0 | understand it you never mentioned that you seaw him and showed
0| him this memorandum.
; T Now, how do you account for the fact that ycu did not
’ E 12 give to me at that time an indication that you had discussed
n : 13 or shown him this memorandum?
§ 14 Captain Kramer: Senator, T didnot discuss that memo-
E 15 randum with Admiral Wilkinson other than the aspecis, -1 think
i 16 ' I have olearly indicated heretofore 1in my testimony, - con-
17 cerning the p osslble socurce of unwarranted publicity conocern-
'8 ing me; in other words, primarily ccncerning Saffordis two
10 letters, not my memorandum for Admiral Halsoey.
20 | Senator Ferguson: But ycu showed him the Halsey memo-
2 | rendum?
& 22 || Captain Kramer: I d4id, sir,
23 1 Senator Ferguson: Well, why didn't you disclose that
24 when I tried to get the full information on your ccnversa-
25 i tion with Wilkinson, why didn't you tell me that you h:d
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.,Ferguson

shown him a memorandum? Was 1% that, as you say, you were not

| going to disclose that unless you were asked a direct ques-

tion in relation to 1¢7T
|

| Captain Kramer: That 18 precisely correct, sir, and 1n

view of your line of questioning, Senator, I feel that I

h
should read this statement I have prepared over the week end

in compliance with the request of Senator Brewster that 1

“ ponder that questlion,

|
q Senator Ferguson: Well, now, do I understand then that

what you do in your testlmony on any of these hearlngs 48
that you give only those thin3zs that are directly asked for
and if the examiner does not happen to know that there 18 1in
existence a particular paper that i1t 18 not disclosed? I am
trying to find out why I did not get the information when I
tried to get from you everything that wase sald between you

i and Wilkinson.

Captain Kramer: I think that polint 18 fully covered 1in
my statement, sir, if I may be permitted to read 1it.

Senater Ferzuson: Well, in Just a moment you ocan. Did
you discuss anything with wilkinson in the last 8ix months?
On how many occasions did you see Wllklinson To d iscuss things?

Captain Kramer: On two occaslions, 81r, other than a

| simple greeting in this hearing rcom when he was testifylng.

Senator Ferguyson: On two occaslons?
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|

f

|
| Senator Ferguson: Xou gave me the other day the one oc-

Captaln Kramer: Yegsa, sir,

caslon and then you gave Senator Brewster on Saturdsy the one?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,

| Senator Ferguson: That made the two?
| Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.
. Senator Ferjuson: Well, now, why did you keep from the
committee when I examined You about all your coenversations
| with Wylkinson the faot thut you h:ed had one about this Halsey
memorandum? |

Captain Krumer: The first ocoasion with Admirel Wilkin-
son dld not bring up this question at all, sir. It was a
discusslion on our experlences in ONI in general in whizsh Ad-
mirsl Kirk partiocipated for at least half of the time. The

other half we discussed primarily, - in faot, almost solely, -

| the introductory remarks with which I presented those papers
to Admiral Wilkinson, namely, what I considered the likely
scource of publicity attendinz my name in connecticn with this
| Pearl Harbor affalr,

Senator Ferguscn: Well, now, Captain, you gave to this

- commlttee two of those papers and only two of those, isn't
! that true?

| Captaln Kramer: - Three, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Three. But you d4id not glve them the
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

memorandum, the Halsey memorandum?

Captain Kramer: That is precisely ocorrect, sir.

Senator Ferguscn: Now, how do you asoount for dividing
them up and giving the two of them ~-

Captain Kramer: Three.

Senator Ferguson: Three of them, - pardon me, three
letters,'two letters from Safford te you and one reply, -
but there was also a reply tc one of Safford's which d41d ex-
actly or almost exactly what gafford wanted ycu to deo; to
discuss it with Halsey?

Captain Kramwer: Senator, how those «-

Mr. Richardson: Just answer his question, Captailn.

Captain Kramer: (Continuing) -- letters first came up

was in reply to a direct question te wme on the part of Sen-

ator Lucas whether T had in my possesslon letters addressed to
me by Captain Safford. I ateod up in this room, 1in the back
of this room and I said I did. AT thal time, Senator, I not
only produced the two letlers but my reply to Ggptaln Saf-
ford's letter, waich was pot asked for precisely by Senator
Lucas' question.

Senator Ferguson: All right. Now, when you gave these
three letters, two of the Safford's and your reply, to Com-

mander Baecher did you at the same time give him the Halsey

memorandumi
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Witness Kramer Guestions by: Sen.Ferguson

Captain Kramer: I 414, sir.
Senator Ferguson: And then when he delivered the three

letters to the committee did ycu have to authorise that? Yas

that an understanding?

Captain Kramer: I 414 not, sir. He had i1t in hand 1n
case that question of necessity came into my testimony.

Senator Ferguson: In other words, he was holding in hils
possession four instruments, 18 that correct?

Captain Kramer: That 18 correct, sir,

Senator Ferguson: And Af 1t became necessary for him to

deliver he would deliver only those that he thought were ne-

cessary at the time and hold back from the coumittee the oth-
era?

Captain Krumer: I should like %o point out, sir, that
he also mentioned the existence of that fourth letter to
oounsel for this cecmmittee, Mr. Riychardson.

Senator Ferguson: Yhen was that?

Captain Kramer: I am not certain, sir. Baecher, I think,

can supply that information.

Senator Ferguson: Well, did you have a conversation about

i that?

Captain Krame#: I d4id not, sir,

Senutor Ferguson: Well, how do you know that?

Captain Kramer: I think I heard Mr., Richardson say that
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Witness Krumer Questions by: Sen.,Ferguson

turday.

Senator Ferguson: You understood that from --
Captain Kramer: From Mr. R4chardson's statement.
Senator Ferguson: From what was sald here?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguscn: Then as 1 understand it you personal-

four instruments unless a direot question was asked and the
committee somehow out of the magio would uncover the faoct,
or out of the blue, let us say, would yncover the faot that

there was this Hplsey memorandum, i8 that correct?

Captain Kramer: That is precisely ocorract, 8ir, and 1
think I gave at some length on Saturday my r'easons for that

;)OW!lJHlOﬂl.

Senator Ferguson: Yes.

(ﬁptaln Kramer: 1 also cover that in thils statement,

Senator Ferguson: S0 you were of the opinion at that
time that this committee should only get those thinss that
‘4% ouwld £ind out from some o ther source and not from you?
How could the committee ascertain if --

Captain Kramer: They found out from me =-

Senator Fer guson: How could the committee members ever

ask you about this Halsey letter? You and Baecher and Wil-
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'Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen,Ferguson

:
2 |/kinson and a f ew others were the only people that ever Knew

3 |l about it.

F

i |
]

|

0 I had ever discussed these letters with a nyone up to this mo-

Captain Kramer: The man who found out for this committee

from me was Mr. Keefe, who asked me the direoct que.:ition whether

+ |l ment. Your questions to me, sir, were not 8o phrased.

| Senator Ferguson: You think that they are not direot
J
enough when I ask you about the Wilkinson question?

0
10 Captain Kramer: I do, Senator.
& .5 Senator Ferzuson: And, therefore, you did not give 167
. : 12 Captain Kramer: That 18 correct, sir.
£ 14 Senator Ferguson: Well, now, will you explain to me how
; 14 it ocame ly chance that you would have this Haleey letter in

ACT

15 your possession down 1n the Navy Department the day that you

i
16 || met Wilkinson by chance?

17 Captain Kramer: I brought 1t with me from Mliami in this
s || cage in which it has remained, incidentally, sealed, from the
19 time I left the South Pacific on about 10 September 1944 untill
20 my arrival in thils olty on 6 December 1945 from Miami.

21 Jenator Ferguson: So 1t was sealed all this time?

22 || captain Kramer: That 18 corrsct, sir.
23 Senttor Ferguson: And how was 1t 8 ealed?

24 | Captain Kramer: It was s~aled 1ln a package referred to

25 in the suthorization to me from Cmmander Seuth Paocifin ar

)

a
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and Scuth Pacific Force dated 10 ~-=

e

| Mr. Richardson: Tell him how it was sealed., That 1s all

4 he wants to EKnow.

5 ! Jenator Ferguson: Yes, thatls all I want to know.
o |  Mr. Richardson: What kind of a lock 1t had on 1t
7 |l Captain Kramer: It was 8ealed 1n a package No, 47,102 by

8 | the flag secretary to Comﬁandor South Pacific under date of

o F 10 September and desoribed on this authorizatlon for me to
10 carry classified papers from this (brown wrapping paper)

1 originated by Com. South Paoiflc addressed to Commander A.

AS £ TJmAah

(2 D. Kramer by CINC South Paciflc, sigrned by I. M. Mayfileld,

-

13 Chief of Staff,

14 | Senabor Ferguson: Well, now, did you tell him when you

t“-..-:-_"" "".:'.-‘

15 got this memorandum that you had 1in there a memorandum that
16 || you had shown Admiral Halsey?

17 Captain Kramer: I d4id not, sir,

18 Senaztor Ferguson: Well, how did he know what he was seal-

19 ing? Did he seal among the offlclal papers y our perannal

20 memorandum te Halsey?
21 Captain Kramer: Among those, yes, s8lr,
22 Senator Ferguson: So, then, this personal paper was

23 sealed among or along with the offliclal documents?

24 Captain Kramer; With official documents that were pure-

25 || 1y for my own use. I cerried no official Com. South Pacifio

¥
|l
!i
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Witness Kra mer Guestions by: Sen.Ferguson

mall. It was for use in conneotion with my work.

I repeat again, Senator, that I should like at this

point to read my memorandum which covers those points you

have explicitly and fully.
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

Senator Ferguson: You go ahead and read it and then
I will ask you some questions later on, becauné I apparently
am not going to get direct answers from you, so you go ahead
and read it.

The Vice Chairman: Read it, Captain.

Captain Kramer: Mr. Chairman, I prepared a statement,
in compliance with Senator Brewster's request on Saturday

afternoon, which was put to me in the following terms,

| according to yesterday's Washington Star:

"That would put a strain on anyone's credulity. I
wish you would ponder over this question further over the
week-end. I am sure you will appreciate that it is difficult
0 believe your answer.”

I belleve I understand correctly that the Senator's
credulity applied only to my assertions that I have not read,
Since mid-May 1944, certain papers, principally and specifi-
cally a memorandum aziswering, in expanded form, the question
set forth in Captain Safford’s two letters that I prepared
for Admiral Halsey's perusal, but it probably also included
Captain Safford’s two letters and my reply to his first.

I have pondefod this request, with the following result,
which has become, I am afraid, rather lengthy in text. I
have attempted to keep it short, but a question of credulity

did hot warrant, I felt, leaving out of this summary any
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| Witness Kramer

, matter I have included.

W

I have thought that it would not be necessary to bring
| these papers into the record of this hearing at all. I had
no intention of doing so, unless directly asked for them.

Such a direct request was addressed to:meiin.this room by

a
Senator Lucas last Monday when Captain Safford was on the
7
witness stand. At that time I considered that furnishing
8
the Captain Safford's two letters and my reply to his first
¢)

| letter was complying fully with Senator Lucas'! request.
10

My memorandum answering, in expanded form, the questions
11

| set forth in Captain Safford’s two letters would not have

12

~UA" & TQRAAW

been introduced if Mr. Keefe's or other ingquiries on behalf
13 kK

| of this committee had not been phrased in a form requiring

14
its introduction. Mr. Keefe's question asking, in substance,

a HOTOWIHEAW

15
whether I had ever discussed Captain Safford’s letters with

-
—

16

anyone required, I felt, the mention at that time of my
17 |

discussion with Admiral Halsey, the only person who has
18

seen these papers, except Captain Safford and myself, prior

18

to the opening of this hearing.
20

¢«

22

In the interest of the truth, the whole truth and nothing
|| but the truth, when Mr. Keefe asked his next question as to

why such discussion was held, I considered it incumbent on:
23

me to produce Admiral Kimmel's letter and my memorandum to
24

explain the discussion.
2s

|

e -
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Witness Kramer

I am of the complete conviction that no question pro-
pcunded by Senator Ferguson to me required such mention of
Admiral Halsey or Admiral Kimmel, or this memorandum.

The reasons for my position on this matter, as outlined
above, are that I felt the only end that could possibly be
served by their introduction was a pi&ture of the events
preceding Pearl Harbor as I saw them at the time the memorandum
was drafted. That 1s a year and a half to two years ago.
Since both persons involved, namely Captain Safford and myself,
vere to be witnesses before this hearing, I felt that first-
hand, direct testimony would be AEveloped by counsel and
the committee and be preferred to any letters or memoranda
which may have been written at a time when, at least in my
case, initial attempts were made to recall those events
without benefit of any files or pertinent documents to re-
fresh the memory.

To cover the question of credulity to be given my
testimony concerning these papers, I therefore felt it nec-
essary to explain the history of their custody by me in
full.

When I received Captain Safford's first letter at the
end of 1943 I considered it a straight-forward and proper

request for information on matters of which both he and I

wvere cognizant. It will be noted that his letter of 22
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e i

| December 1943 is on the official letterhead of the Office

o B by

cf the Chief of Naval Operations, Navy Department, and uses
the official classification stamp "Confidential".

The letter states that he is preparing a secret paper
covering events on early December 1941 with the #1d of
of ficers and records in the Navy Department.

Three questions arose in my mind at that time. One

concerning the classification he had used, namely, "Confidential".
I thought it should have been "Secret".

Second, concerning his cautions regarding "unauthorized
hands seeing it"; and, third, concerning why such a request
for information had not come through official channels and
the safeguards thus afforded.

Since the letter had arrived safely, the first question
was no longer pertinent. Concerning the second and third,

J felt he used this means to keep from disclosing to un-
authorized officers and enlisted men in the office where I
wvas stationed at Peari Harbor matters which had always been
and still vere restricted to only those people working with
it and certain senior officers.

Furthermore, the practice of discussing and reporting
officlal matters in personal correspondence, although
abolished in the Division of Naval Intelligence in 1940,

continued, I knew, in other Divisions and Bureaus of the
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Witness Kramer

Navy Department. I, therefore, prepared a reply, couching
it in such language, by means of reference to the original
letter, that no compromise to unauthorized persons could,
I believed, possibly result from the letter golng astray,
or from examination by censors at Pearl Harbor, or elsewvhere,
The letter thus censored by myself, was unclassified
and was submitted to the officer in my section who was
censoring for my sectlon. It was forwarded under his
censorship seal after cursory examination, and assurance
from me that it contained nothing likely to compromise
security., I was fully prepared to answer and assume respon-
sibility for any future questions that might be raised by

other censors or the Navy Department regarding this letter.

Captain Safford’s first letter and my rsply were
carried by me to the South Pacific with other classified
papers used by myself in my work under an official courier
letter of the officer in charge, Joint Intelligence Center,
Pacific Ocean areas, dated 10 January, 1944, the original
of which I have before me for presentation, if so desired.

Captain Safford’s second letter arrived shortly after
I reached the South Pacific, I never answered him for
reasons I have set forth at some length in several parts
of my previous testiwmony.

I did not read more than the first few paragraphs
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Witness Kramer

of this second letter until mid-May 1934, on the occasion
of the arrival of Admiral Kimmel's letter to Admiral Halsey
and my first conference with Admiral Halsey resulted in
my preparation of the expanded memorandum reply. This
also I have covered at some length in previous testimony.

In the second interview with Admiral Halsey, in
which he read all these papers, there was not only no
question raised by Admiral Halsey as to the propriety of
my retaining Captain Safford's letters and as to the pro-
priety of my reply to Captain Safford's first letter, but
he expressed satisfaction with my promise to prepare an
affidavit or deposition covering essentially the subject
matter of the above-mentioned papers, and then informing
Admiral Kimmel, either directly or through Admiral Halsey,
regarding where such affidavit could be found in the event
of my death,

The only instance when ; security point arose
during our conversation was when I expressed myself on and
Admiral Halsey expressed agreement with the view that
Captain Safford was rash in having sent a letter of the
character of his second.

I, therefore, felt fully justified in the steps I

had followed to date in this matter.

As I have earlier stated in testifying before this com-

-

ey BN " )

e == “w;‘m w"

iy ol oY T -
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| Witness Kramer
h3 l ﬂ committee, the safe handling and eventual disposition of

™)

| these papers gave me some concern durlng the summer of

3 194k, after Admiral Halsey left the South Pacific, sbout

i || 15 June, 1944, (.

I never prepared the deposition or the affidavit

for Admiral Kimmel that I had promised Admiral Halsey I
would. T did, however, continue to hold these papers,
more particularly the expanded pemorandum reply to all

Captain Safford’s questions as in the nature of the

' affidavit requested.

ik As long as I was in the South Pacific force and area

¥ headquarters, wvhich was distant from the combat zone, I

'3 | pelt that the papers vere safe in my custody at headquarters,

& I 1eft the South Pacific on 10 September, 194k,

ACTOAIHZAW LUAS & QRAW

& carrying these papers, and other classified papers used

[ ]
L

—

A in my work in two packages, sealed by the KFlag Sscretary

17 || to Com So Pac, and carried under the courier designation

18 dated 10 September 1944, signed by the Chief of Staff,

19 Captain (now Admiral) Mayfield. The original is now before
<0 w mo.for submission, if so desired.

el | since 10 September, 1944, these letters have remained

e3 senled in Com So Pac package No. 47102, mentioned in the

o } above courier designation, until the afternoon of 6 Dacember,

2% I 1945,
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- Witness Kramer

Subsequent to my testimony given before the Naval Court
of Inquiry at Pearl Harbor, I gave consideration, and in fact
almost did destroy all of these letters and memoranda. The
only reason, as I have already outlined why I retained them
to that point was in compliance with Admiral Kimmel ‘s request.

After testifying, however, before the Court of Inquiry
held by Admiral Murfin at Pearl Harbor that reason no longer
held, in view of the fact that wmy story was now a matter of
record in the trenscript of the proceedings of the Court of
Inquiry.

However, I continued to hold these papers more in the
nature of mementos of that occasion, and partly with a view
to having documentary evidence of what wy reply to Captain

Saffordt!s first letter had been.

B
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Witness Kramer

I have previously gone into the circumstances sur-
rouding my arrival from the South Pacific at Pearl Harbor

| around midnight 12-13 September, 1944, and the fact that

T was not aware I had been called north to testify, before
a Naval Inquiry on Pearl Harbor. I have further testified
previously that it was not until a few minutes prior to
‘ my appearance before this hearing that I was awaré that 1
| would be permitted to testify on matters involving radio
intelligence.
i In support of this testimony I can only call on Captain
E. T, Layton, U.S.N., at that time and still the Intelligence
orficer of Commander in Chief Pacific Ocean Area, Admiral
Nimitz, the said Captain Layton being my informant in each
case.

Unti. the Senator from Maine asked me the direct
question "Who has seen these memoranda and letters since
this hearing opened in mid-November, " or words to that
effect, there was not only no necessity, but not even any
occasion for dragging into my testimony the names of three
close and long-time friends of wmine.

In support of my previous testlimony regarding my not
reading the letters and the memorandum ansvering Captain

Safford’s questions in full when I presented them for

. perusal to three of my friends oince this hearing opened,
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Witness Kramer
I can only call on Admiral Wilkinson, Captain Rochefort,

and Colonel Bales, who are the aforementioned three friends.

I have not seen any of these three individuals since
some days prior to my appearance in this‘witnaas'ohair,
and have not communicated with any of these three indivi-
duals directly or indirectly for several weeks past.

At this point, in the interest of precision and ac-
curacy of my testimony in the record, I should like to
modify somewhat the testimony I gave Saturday, as to the
exact dates I saw and showed these letters to the above-
mentioned three friends.

I find that in some notes I kept during December lasat,
an entry for the day I arrived in Washington from Miami
wvas as follows:

"December 6, Thursday, p.m.: Bull session with
Wilkinson and later Kirk and Wilkinson. Kirk is with
General Board. 3Saw Joe Rochefprt briefly in office.
MeCollum and Layton were here for some days but left yester-
day. |

"December 13, Thursday, 0830: Up and to Department.

"1000 (about), showed Wilkinson Saffordis letters and
what had been done with replies (shown only to Halsey in

case of No. 2). This was my explanation to him of all

this unwarranted publicity I have been getting.




Witness Kramer

hé S "1230: Lunch and bull session with Rochefort.

v

"1430: Bales'! office and discussed Saffo letters

| a little. Will show him these dates. :

| "December 14, Friday, 1430: Had bpief session with

Safford in his office looking over some of his files of

’ papers. Stated I would look at others tomorrow or Monday.
" "December 16, Sunday, 0900: Up, bathed, etc. Got
" to Bales' at 10:15. Cold as hell. Ten degrees last night,
- , Had breakfast and bull session 'til after 1400. Showed him
; ¥ Saffo's two letters and memo.
. é " "December 18, Tuesday, 1200: Recessed. To Navy 3
% - Department and had long bull session with Joe Rochefort
% = and showed him Sarro'P letters., This makes three people
g % who have seen them: Hglaay;‘wilkinaonj and Rochefort.
: - Bull session continued 'til about 1530." |
16

| This, Senator, ends my - quotation from the afore-

1
} 7 |

mentioned notes. In the event Senator Brewsteris or others

= credulity is strained as to why I have had such notes in g
" my possession and as to theip authenticity, I can only é
o assert the following, which is the sole explanation: j
i In November last year -- %
" Mr. Richardson (intorposing): Captain, just a minute. i
e ; Is there any need of carrying this on? The only question, %
24 '

as I understand it, that was asked you by 3denuvor Fesguson
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Mr. Richardson
wvas the guestion of keeping this memorandum in your posses-

sion without reading 1it.

Captain Kramer: I understood the question, Mr.
Counsel, to apply to the credulity to be applied to my
testimony regarding the showing of these memoranda, and
not reading them while they were being shown.

Mr. Richardson: Go shead. Get through with it.

My. Murphy: Mr. Chairman, in fairness to the witness,
the Senator from Maine did ask him to ponder,

The Vice Chairman: Go ahead, Captain.
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In November last year my wife came to Washington from
Miami and remained wvith me until our departure on 14 November

for Miami. On my return alone to Washington in early

‘ December to await the pleasure of this committee 1 determined

o keep notes in some detalil of my activities, people 1 met,
old acquaintances seen again, and 80 forth, so that on my
expected return to Miami for the Christmas holidays she
aould read them over and I would thus be able to acquaint

her of the above in some detail without depending on memox'y

suych a set of notes or disry I have never kept since
some years prior o Pearl Harbor. The sole reason for keep-
ing it in this {nstance was because of the deep interest
with which my wife was following these hearings and any
connection I might have therewith. They cover the period
secor. 5 December 1945 when I left Miami for Washington to
>0 December 1945 when 1 1eft Washington for Miemi. They
wapre prepared by me On my return to the Bethesda Naval
Hospital each evening before 1 turned in. No such notes
vere undertaken by me during my present stay in washington
for the past months because my wife was with me here most
of this time. The consist of about eight and one-half pages

and are rather meticulous and complete and mention the

names of nearly every ascquaintance 1 8aW ~»r conversed with.
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| Witness Kramer.
{ I am confident that Admiral Wilkinson, Captain Rochefort
' | mand Colonel Bales will substantiate my testimony previously

given regarding my presentation of Safford's letters to them,

as well as all details of which they are aware with fegard

~o the accuracy of the above-quoted notes and my testimony.

The Senstor from Maine and others may have received

r end may now receive with some degree of incredulity the

sssertions T have made in the previous testimony regarding

wy relations with Captailn safford to the effect that up
10

until last week at least they have continued on a friendly
Il

A DHAW

ha8is and so continue unless his attitude toward me has

shanged in the past week. I have inserted above the
143
suotation from my notes in support of this assertion. 1 am
14

STOMIHMEAW LUAFR

sure that Captain Safford's secretery, as vell as certain

AT

) ; of ficer subordinates of his can support my assertion that
16

during my four or five visits to his office last year there
¥ | ] -

-ontinued to be friendly relations between us despite dis-
18

|| agreement on many points. Captain Safford himself can also
19

support this.

el

|
® -

22

The full set of these notes I would be glad to submit
to Senator Brewster, or others, for exemination if so desired.

In support of my previous testimony that I have not

- nshown this memorandum to other than Admiral Halsey, Admiral

¥ 11lkinson, Captain Rochefort, end Colonel Bales, prior To

. I i R ™ — _#m# e .
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- Witness Kramer

showing it to Lieutenant Commander Baecher a few days ago,

— e o w— R

. , || 7 can only call on all persons with whom I could poss:bly

have had contact since mid-May, 1944. I am confident no
such peruser of these papers can.be found or could ever
have been found.

’ In support of my previous testimony that I have not
read these papers, other than to glance at the headings

or first paragraphs of each, from mid-May 1944 to this

2 moment, except for certain days and times last December

il £8 given above, and a few days ago to Lieutenant Commander

2 || Baecher, I can only give my word that this is a meticulously

1

55 truthful statement of fact.

4 0 ATTIMIMRAW _UAS g8 OPAWN

(1-A) o I hope these comments comply with the wish of the
|5 Senator from Maine that I ponder this question further
18 during the week-end, namely, the question of assertions of
‘1 mine with respect to these papers, assertions which may
18 possibly have resulted in straining the credulity to be
e afforded my previous testimony before this committee on
a0 Zhis and other matters.
LaC.

(2‘1‘013. -

22
23

24
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. Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
i
The Vice Chairman: Does that complete your statement,
: 2 | .
& | | Captain?
.
Captain Kramer: Yes, sir, that completes my statement.

The Vice Chairman: Senator Ferguson.

Senator Ferguson: I think I will leave that subject
for awvhile now and go to another one.

Will you take Exhibit 2 and turn to page 22.
l Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: When is the first that you saw that
10
message either in code or the rough translation?
11

* Captain Safford: The first I recollect having seen this

12

~UAS 8 OAAW

message was in the form of a rough translation attached to
13

1
| the decoded Japanese text on Monday morning 8 December 1941.
14

However, I have been informed --

15

O ACTINAITHZAW

Mr. Richardson: He just asked you when you first saw 1it.

-
-

16

Captain Kramer: All right.
17

Senator Ferguson: That is the first you saw 1t?
18
Captain Kramer: That is the first I recollect seeing
10
it, yes, sir.
20
Senator Ferguson: You had a Mrs. Edgar in your Department?
21

i Captain Kremer: It was she I was about to refer to, sir.
22

Senator Ferguson: Well, did you see her on Saturday,
23
vas she working?
24

Captain Kramer: She was,yes, sir.
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Witness Kramer

H Senator Ferguson:

Captain Kramer:

to me she did and -~

Mr. Richardson:

Captain Kramer:

* Senator Ferguson:

L Captain Kramer:

Senator Ferguson:

against these places."

message, was it not?

Captain Kramer:

Senator Ferguson:

|| attack would be -- or

Captain Kramer:

that in the rough on Saturday?

i
’ important, were they not?

came in on the oth and it has this at the bottom:

"I 4magine that in all probability there is considerable

115135
Questions by: Senator Ferguson

And did you know that she translated
I did not know she did. She has stated
That answers the question.
-- and I believe her in that respect.

These messages in Exhibit 2 were very

Yes, sir, they were.

Now, turn to page 27. That message

opportunity left to take advantage for a surprise attack

It was from Honolulu to Tokyo. That was a very vital

It certainly became ane when we knew

of the attack on Pearl Harbor, yes, sir. It would have

been if we had seen it prior to the attack.

Do you know why no particular effort

was being mrde to translate these messages as to where the

the same effort that was being exerted

to ascertain whether there would be & breach of relations?

Senator, my ansver to that will fall in
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
two parts. In the first place, there-is no clue to the

sub ject or importance of a message until a translator has
completed a translation. In the second place, this message
1s dated 6 December, a date of Army responsibility, and I
kxnow nothing of their handling of this particular message.

Senator Ferguson: Now, turn to page 29. The last
sentence of that message, from Honolulu to Tgkyo reads:

"It appears that no air reconnaissance 1s being conducted
by the Fleet Air Arm."

Captain Kramer: Precisely the same remarks apply to
this message, which was translated, according to the notation
at the bottom, and my recollection, too, incldentally, on
8 December 1941.

Senator Ferguson: So as I understand it, your reply
is that these were in the Army?

Captain Kramer: Thece were Army dates of responsibility
to translate, yes, sir, ﬁrocess and translate.

Senator Ferguson: And not the Navy?

Captain Kramer: That is correct, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Did you know that part of the Army,
at least part of the Army translators, went home at noon on
saturday?

Captain Kramer: Normally ours would have too.

Senator Ferguson: Well, was it true that some of your
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Witness Kramer OQuestions by: Senator Fergusaon

translators were on their Christmas holidays as early as this?

: Captain Kramer: They were not, sir.

g Senator Ferguson: Were there any on furloughs or holidays?
’ Captain Kramer: No, sir; all six of my translators wvere

’ on duty.

6 |

| Senator Ferguson: Now, notwithstanding the fact that

y
h these messages were in and you antlcipated a reply to the

8 | |
l memorandum of the 26th to the Tokyo Government, certain Army

translators went home for the afternoon on Saturday and they

10 |l
had to be called back later in the afternoon to help on the

11
13th part?

12
Captain Kramer: I do not know precisely what trans-

13
lators were or were not on duty Saturday afternoon, sir.

14
| Purthermore, as regards any possible connection I might have

15

g AOTOVIHZAW JUAS & QRAW

had with these messages on Saturday afternoon, these messages

16
were undoubtedly, unquestionably, in my mind, sent to Army

17
as soon as received.

18 _
In fact, I will modify that statement because there

19 _
18 a notation in the lower right hand corner, a parenthetical

20
note to the effect that the station monitoring thls message

21
vas Station 2, received by teletype. Station 3 was an

22
Army monitoring station. In the 1light of that, it would

23

ippear that this message was seen by Army and detained en-

21 ||
i tirely at all times in the Army Signal Intelligence Section

25
sntil processed a&ad L.
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Senator Ferguson: Were any men in your department on

Christmas leave as early as December 77

Captain Kramer: I do not recall having given Christmas
leave, except possiblt Christmas day to any of my translators,
sir.

Senator Ferguson: To anyone in your department,
vhether translators, or otherwise?

Captain Kramer: No, sir. My department consisted
of six translators, one officer besides myself, and two'
yeomen.

Senator Ferguson: Then you were responsible for the
translations?

Captain Kramer: Translation and dissemination, yes, sir.

Senator Fergusan: Now, the one on page 27, No. 253.
That would indicate that it came from the Army and therefore
the Navy was not responsible?

Captain Kramer: At the bottom, the lower right-hand
corner of page 28, is the same notation as appears on the
other one, nam®ly, that station 2, an”Arﬁw station, monitored
this message.

Senator Ferguson: Is that true of No. 245 on page 227

Captain.Kraﬁor: That is true insofar as the figure 7

in the lower right hand corner indlcates that an Army

station monitorad this wessage. 3iance 1t 1s dated the 3rd,
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
an odd date, it would indicate that they sent it over to

Navy, to the GY section, to be processed when or shortly
after rsceived by Army Signal Intelligence Section.

Senator Ferguson: Do I understand that the Army or
Navy at that tim= could shift responsibility for transla-
tion by merely transferring it over to the other depart-
ments?

Captain Kramer: They could and did, sir, based on
the allocation of responsibility for attack on various
Japanese systems and ciphers, which allocation consisted
briefly of odd days being taken care of by the Navy, even
days by Army.

Senator Ferguson: Have you read Mrs. Edgar's testimony?

Captain Kramer: No, sir, I have not.

Jenator Ferguson: Did you ever hear that this was
translated in the rough on Saturday afternoon?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir, I did.

Senator Ferguson: Well, translation in the rough
would indicate the contents of the m®ssage, would it not,
show its importance?

Ciptain Kramer: Not necessarily, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Were you responsible to supervise

these translators?

Captaln Kramer: [ was, sir.
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l Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
h3 . Senator Ferguson: Reading from page 5412 of the

Hewitt testimony, the testimony of Mrs. Edgars:

"Well, at the time it was my work to roughly translate

any message which was put on my desk, and this was among
the messages that were put on my desk on December 6, Satur-
day morning, and at the time I had only been working in
this section for about a little over two weeks, so at first
|| glance this seemed to be more interesting than some of the

other messages I had in my basket."

10
I am talking about the one about the lights in the

TR
windows, on page 22 of Exhibit 2; you understand?

12
Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,

13 |

AN JJAW A JRAAWN

Senator Ferguson (reading): "And so I selected it

and asked one of the other men wvho were also translators
15

- o AT TaMN

working on other messages, whether or not this shouldn't

16
| be done immediately, and was told that I should , and I

17
then started to translate it."

18
Well, now, is that the way that the importance of the

10
messages yas determined? If it was interesting to ons

20
they would go to somebody else and ask whether they wvere _
21 !

to translate it? Weren’t you in charge that morning and '

22
didn't you know that there was a l3-part message coming in
I
23
in reply to the message that Mr. Hull had given to the
ed |

Japanese on the 26th that may or may not mean a break in

25 i
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relations?

Captain Kramer: Your question, I believe, is a
double question, Senator.

I was }n charge of that section that morning. I was
noF avare until about 3 p. m., or shortly after about the
arrival of the message you referred to, the note.

Senator Ferguson: Do I understand then, that you
didn't know until 3 otclock in the afternoon that there
vas a reply coming in to the message of the 26th?

Captain Kramer: That is pracisely correct, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Then, it was not an unusual day
in the Navy Translation Department until 3 o'clock on the
6th?

Captain Kramer: It was no more unusual at 3 o'elock
than it was 2ll that day, and for some days prior to that
time.

Senator Ferguson: Wasn’t it usual that you would leave
at noon on Saturday?

Captain Kramer: About a quarter of one, yes, sir.
That was the closing of working hours,

Senator Ferguson: How does it come that you didn't

leave on that Saturday then?

Captain Kramer: I would venture the guess that probably

three-quarters of the days for several months prior to Pearl
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Harbor I did not leave at the close of working hours but
remained in the section either alone or with one or more

I
| L.ranslators for period varying from a few minutes to many

nours after the close of working hours.

Senator Ferguson: Now, you never saw the Winant note
which came in at 10:40 to the State Department indicating
zhat there was going to be an attack on the Kra Peninsula
on Sunday?

Captain Kramer: I did not, sir. However, I knew about

that contemplated attack, at least insofar as it was dis-
closed in this traffic; and, further, I drafted a message,

which I referred to a few days ago here, outlining the high

points of that attack, a dispatch sent to the Commander in
(hief Pacific Fleet and Asiatic Fleet.

Senator Ferguson: Then up until 3:00 o'clock on
Qaturday thepre wus no re-alerting of your Department ?

Captain Kramer: Re- what?

Senator Ferguson: Re-alerting or change, that you were
working harder or any different than you were in the normal
day, because you hadn't received the Winant message and you
24 no other 1nforma£1 n which would indicate that there was
any unusual message coming through on that day?

Captain Kramer: On that point, Senator, the alerting

you refer %o could not poasivly have altered the situation 1in
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|

my office since not only that day but for many days during

that fall we were working at full capacity and over, if I

3 |

F

may so state, in my section.

Senator Ferguson: Now, I go on. Mr. Sonnett 1s examin-
i2g Mrs. Edgars. He says:
"asbout what time on that day did you complete your

trenslation, Mrs. Edgars?”

Now referring to this light message on page 22 of

Zxhibit 2. She says:

10 ||
| "Well, it so happened that there was some mistakes

122t had to be corrected and so that took some time. That
12

gas at 12:30 or perhaps it was a little before or after 12:30.
13 i

Hietever time it was we were to go home, it being Saturday.

14 j
iie worked until noon. I hadn't completed it so I worked 3

15

3 0 ACT"SVMi=gawN _UAY" g ORAW

cver-time and finished it, and I would say that between 1:30 ;
16 :

17

end 2:00 wvas when I finished my rough draft translation.” i
.
She was asked: i

18
""hat 1is on the afternoon of December 67"

And Mrs. Edgars says:
"On the 6th, yes, sir."

z1
. "Mr. Sonnett: For the sake of the record will you

22
describe briefly what that message 18?" |
J

e -
And the reply: ﬂ

i
"Mps. Edgars: Well, without reading it over egaln nov, |
|
l
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{ - ;

|

|
]
|
[

just because of the fact that the message did keep in mind -~

1

T would say that it was a message saying how they were goling

to communicate from Honolulu to the parties interested the

information of our fleet movements from Honolulu, and apparently

it was something which they had had previous arrangements

Hut they had changed some of the minor details of how to

7
‘ 20 about it. I think there was something to do with lights,

| & window of a certain house, and there was also something

about newspaper advertising.”

10
Now, here is a girl thet is remembering this until 1945

Ly,
«ithout seeing the message, showing that she understood wvhat

12
it was from the rough.
13
Captain Kramer: I think, Senator, on the point of
4
remembering that, I have not particularly read or studied

N 0 . ACTDW I HMPAW _JUAT A JQRAW

~nis since I did on 8 December 1941, but I believe I could
s quote the whole message almost verbatim from memofy.
3 Senator Ferguson: And you hadn't read it since the :
¥ 8th of December? '
i Captain Kramer: Not in full, no, sir.
- Senator Ferguson: But you are having a great amount
21 |

22
|| message which was only about two lines in length?

i

1

of difficulty remembering what was 1in the winds execute :}

1

i

) :
:

Captain Kramer: And, incidentally, seen by me for a

neriod varying from 10 to 15 seconds and containing information
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“‘Hitnnas Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
1

shat was not materially different than information we had
2 |

o1lready.

In the case of this message here, Senator, I spent
¢overal days clearing garbles and working with this message

vefore it was completed in the form you now see 1t.

Senator Ferguson: When did you spend that time on 1t?

| Captain Kramer: 8-9-10 December 1941, sir.

! Senator Ferguson: But there was sufficlent sven in

the rough to impress Mrs. Edgars with the facts that she
10
has related in that answver, which would have tipped you off,
11
would it not, that Pearl Harbor was in danger that day if
12

there was going to be an attack?
3 S |

Captain Kremer: That attention was not invited to
14 ||
| me that I have any recollection of, sir. In that connection

2 O ACTIMIHZAW JUAS A ORAW

I would like to remark that Mrs. Edgars was still unfamiliar
16
|l with the practices and procedures in my office, that 1t
17
was the usual if not invariable practice of the three hlighly

18
skilled and experienced translators jn my office to always
18
(5) | immedietely invite my attention to important traffic they
20

| vere working on or had completed.
el 1
Senator Ferguson: Well, now, would you consider that

22
or would you not consider that important traffic?
23

TP Lo P D e e i b

| Ceptain Kramer: This particular measage?
24

k. T s

Senator Ferguson: Yes.
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

Captain Kramer: If I had seen it Saturday afternoon

| T most certainly think I would have, yes, sir.

Sepator Ferguson: How do you account for the person
irre. Edgars showed 1t to not coming to the same conclusion?

Captain Kramer: I cannot account for that, sir. He

robably did.

‘ Senator Ferguson: Then, the next question: (Reading)

‘ "Do you know whether that translation which you com-

pleted in the early afternoon of December 6, 1941 was brought

to the attention of now Captain Kramer?

"Mps. Edgars: It was brought to his attentlon naturally

yecause it was -- well -- well, 1n any case, he knew that I

was working on it and 1 1eft it, as a matter of fact, in
| the hands of the Chief, whose job it was tc edit messages
|

and write them up, or one that was more complicated and more

—

important, like this, the officer in charge looked 1t over
and edited it."

Who would he be?

Captain Kramer: That would be myself, s8ir.

—

Senator Ferguson: Did you SO edit 1t?
Captain Kramer: Not Saturday, no sir.

Senator Ferguson: Well, then, the Chief would be you?

1 Caeptain Kramer: The Chief would refer to Chief Yeoman

l
|| Bryant, now Chief Ship’s Clerk, U. S. Navy.
i
|

!
I
|
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Sonator Ferguson: The first part of the answer would
4uply to Bryant and the last part of the answvern to you,
that you would edit it? Bryant would not edit 1t?

Captain Kramer: He would edit it as far as putting
1t in our usual form. The text and contents would be edited
by myself so far as the translation was concerned .

Senator Ferguson: Do I understand nowv that your
Lvpartment was alerted to the fact that you were trying to
get Intelligence to ascertasin if the Japanese attacked where
zhey would attack?

Captain Kramer:; That 1is correct, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Had you ever talked to Mp. Bryant,
Ship's ClerkiBryanf, covering that, so that if a message
came on the 6th indicating a transmission of information
from Honolulu or Hawaii about our Fleet by using lights
<in the window, that he would immediately sense that that
was a very vital and important message and would take 1t
up with his superior?

Captain Kramer: Most certalnly did not, sir. I knew
othing about lights until I studied that message .

Senator Ferguson: Did you take up with him the fact
513t you wanted him to take up with you any messages indi-
cating where an attack might take Place?

- Ceptain Kramer: 7T at ne t'ne veeg rware or belicved that
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
the Japanese would attack the United States, sir, until
they actually did.

Senator Ferguson: Then we come to this point. On
Saturday morning your Department was not even alerted to the
fact that the Japs might attack the United States?

Ceptain Kramer: I am afraid, Senator, that your con-
struction of the word "alert™ differs from mine.

Senator Ferguson: All right. Ietis take out the word
"alert" and say "aroused to that fact"?

Captain Kramer: We were aroused to the imminent diplo-
matic corisis, yes, sir, and were working to full capacity.

Senator ferguson: Now, were you familiar with the fact
tuat there was a movement south which might involve the
Unlted States?

Captain Kramer: I had no knowledge whatsoever that
such movement south, of which we had a great deal of informe-
<aon, would involve the United States, no, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Well, now, if you had had information
of our policy --

Captain Kramer: About what, sir?

oenator Ferguson: About our policy, of what it meant
to the United States, a movement south into Malaya, would
that have helped you on chese ﬁassages to determine their

imortanca?
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Captain Kramer: I believe it would, sir, in that I
wvould have paid far more attention to the details or elicited
from Captain McCollum details about our Fleet.
Senator Ferguson: Did you know our Fleet was 1n Hawali?
Captain Kramer: I knew it was in the Hawaiian area,
but whether in port or hundreds of miles away I had no knowledge
of at any time for months prior to Pearl Harbor or in fact
Yor months after Pearl Harbor.
Senator Ferguson: So you didn't know whether we were
out at sea or wvhether we vere in port?
Captain Kramer: No, sir.
Senator Ferguson: You didn't know what our policy was,
1T there was an attack on the British thaet we might expect
an attack on our Fleet which was on the flank, you had no
knowledge of that?
Captain Kramer: I had no knowledge of that pollicy, no, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Therefore a message such as this

- Fleat movement, this message on page 22, of the lights in

the window to indicate when our ships were in the harbor,
wouldn'’t have really meant much to you?

Captain Kramer: I think --

Senator Ferguson: Because you didn't know the Fleet
was there?

Captein Fremer: I think the message would heve meant
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

much to me if it wvere in legible form when I first perused
it, yes, sir. However, I have already remarked on the fact
cthat to get it into its present form required several days'
work, to mﬁke much sense of 1it.

Senator Ferguson: Did you treat this message in the
same way as you treated the 1l4th part message?

Captain Kramer: As soon as I saw 1t I did, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Did your Department treat or was 1t
instructed to treat all messages alike on this morning, or
vere they put to work on the 13th part of the l4-part
messape?

Captain Kramer: I repeat agaln, Senator, the so-~called
4-part message did ﬂot'start coming in until the afternoon.

There were no specific instructions, except general in-

structions about certain circuits being pushed through first,

cut it was the practice of my more experienced translators
to glance through hastily the general tenor of all messages
rut on their desks and then give priority to those that
eppeared most lmportant. Oftentimes consulting with me on
rhat point.

Senator Ferguson: Now, as I understand it, Bryant had
instructions wvhen he sawv the rough of this message so that

he should have called 1t to your attention?

Captain Kramer: HNot specific instructions on thils message,

'
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Witness Kramer

Questions by: Senator Ferguson
$no, 8sir..

Senator Ferguson: Any message.

Captain Kramer: -Any message which normally such attention
would have been drawn to me in the first instance by the
Lranslator so translating 1t, sir.

Senator Ferguson: But you had never taken up with

| Bryant or your staff that matter?

Captain Kramer: Normally, Senator, Bryant did not get
this material until I edited 1t.

Senator Ferguson: How do you account --

Ceptein Kramer: Unless a message was of slmple form
or was perfectly plain &s to sense and meaning to the
translsator, in which case the translator, if 1t were not

something that because of its content and importance should

. 1o at once brought to my attention, the translator would

| *ael it should be typed up before bring'ng it to my attention.

Senator Ferguson: Did you ever take up with Bryant
oi* your staff the importance of ship movements as wvell as
Giplomatic matters?

Captain Kramer:; I did, sir.

Senator Ferguson: What was your instruction to them?
I am talking about these messages on ship movements 1n Exhibit
2, whera we find three or four not translated, at least on

tha smooth copy, until after the attack, and if translated
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| Witness Kramer Questions DY¥: genator Ferguson
pefore would have given you def inlte 1nformation.that

" there W&as going to be an attack on Pearl Harbor.

‘ Captain.Kramsr: Evary_message bearing oOn ship‘movements,
1“ sither of our Navy, our erchant Marine, OF foreign Navies,
L specifically England, was given hign priority 1in ny section
! and all were +panslsated and. disseminated by my gsection.

genator Ferguson: You Knew +hat some of tThosSe messages

1

|

|

|

| ware 22 Jdays belng translated. How 4o you sccount for that?
E and I find NO diplomatic messages held up that 1onge.

| Capt&in.Kramer: T would like to have & gpecific one

sointed out, sir, pefore commenting cn that.

(!
'\ genator Fergusol: well, I wish you.would lock over

tnhen.

1+

. ‘_."':3. AN JuU»

| Mp. Murphy: Will the cgnator yield?

| senstor Ferguson: Y0s:

1; Mr. Murphy: 1 vonder if the Senator Knows that that

i ;articular mossage WaS also 1nﬂHonolﬁ1u on the 5th. T mean

an to this signal. They had 10 there. The 1ights 1in the

v’ ndow message wvas handed over to them on the 5th ab Honolulu.

;tfi 1

1% was in Pearl Harbor at G-2 and they did rranslate 1% of f
. : cne Tth bub they didn't opefore.
genator Fergusonh: Well, 1 am trying O £4nd outb what

this gentleman xnew about it.

a4

T“" - . .F- a = ‘ -y - L - _— b ® = ' . - =
j4d you know Waado o rmachines ©1eY wad ab Poarl jarbor?
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: Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
: | Captain Kramer: I knew that they had what we call
. ’ a RIP, meaning Radio Intelligence Publication, in fact,
4 a number of them, which included all systems being currently
4 read. I was not aware about the status of the unit at
i Pearl Harbor with respect to a machine. In other words, the
(7) ) purple machine.
? 7 Senator FFerguson: You didn?’t know whether they had
L y { “ne or did not have one?
? t: | Captain Kramer: I did not know until after Pearl Harbor,
; : no, sir.
S 1 O
g ; o] Senator Ferguson: But you weren't relying upon Pearl
| . 3: :3 iarbor getting these messages. You were relying upon the
1* § y fact that you had to get them and give them to these high
i g = l c”"1cilals from the President down?
2 o Captain Kramer: That was my prime responsibility, yes,
i . sir. The Asiatic Fleet, in other words, our unit at
; 3 Corregidor, I knew did have the purple machine. E
i = Senator Ferguson: But your job was not to know or to E
| ;J | understand what Pearl Harbor had, your job was to get the é
translations and give them to the President and from him on %
. - h lown in the Navy as you have described? dl
2; Ceptain Kramer: Yes, sir. The allocation of effort i
2

- Captain Sefford end his subordinstes other than nyself .

- - F
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t Senator Ferguson: You were not concerned with what

they had at Pearl Harbor?

Captain Kramer: I had nothing to do with what they had

or what they worked on, no, 8ir.

Senator Ferguson: And the fact that they may have had

h--"-_ = - -

| these messages was no concern of yours because your position

was to get them translated, glve them to the Secretary of

| +he Navy, Admiral Turner, Admiral Stark and the President?

Captain Kramer: That was my prime responsibility, yes,
10
si>.
11
{ Senator Ferguson: That was your prime responsibility
12
and that is what you were trying to do? |
13 )
Captain Kramer: Yes, s8ir.

14
Senator Ferguson: Now, the State Department didn't
15

2 0 ACTMVIMEAW JUAS & JRAW

¢all you or get in touch with you and tell you that they had
16
» message at 10:40 indicating that there was going to be
17
«n cttack on the Kra Peninsula and thereflore you were to
18

se alerted to get any message that might come in and get
1O 1
; nmediate translation so that they could ascertain what
20

' might happen other than in The Kra Peninsula where they
21

. saw the Japuanese were going?

Captain Kramer: I knew nothing aboat that State Lepart-
23

ment message, no, 8Sir.
24

| senator MFerguson: And you nadé no word from The State

ed
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Department?

Captain Kramer: I dld not, no, sir.

3anator Ferguson: How long has Commander Baecher peen
with the Départment? Do you know' nim%

Captain Kramer: I first had contact that I recoliect
only ai'ter I returned to Washington from Miami on © December
laSt year. 1 understand, however, that he was one of the
assistants to Admiral Hewitt, though I do not recollect his
being in those hearings.

3enator Ferguson: He was an assistant in ths hearings

to Admirai Hewitt and helped to conduct those hearings?

Captain Kramer: Yhat is what 1 now understand.

Senator kerguson: Now, he hadn’t bsen in your department ?

Captain Kramer: No, Sir, av no time.

Senator Ferguson: Do you know wheiher he 18 a Resexve
off'icer or a regular?

Captain Kramer: My understanding 18 that he 18 a
Reserve Officer with legal backgrouna, sir.

Senator rerguson: This message, Extension No. 2027,
the one released by Admiral Noyes in relavion TO vhe Japanese
movement in Thailand, are you ramiiiar with that messaga?

Captain Kramer: 7The one dated 1 December 19417

Senator ferguson: Yes.

Captain Kramer: Yes, slr.
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senuator Ferguson

Senator Ferguson: Yes.

Senator Lucas: Will the Senator tell ume what that
policy 1s°?

Senator Kerguson: I am trying to find out.

Senator Lucas: The Senator hus been assuming with this
witness that we had a definite poiicy, that he didn‘t know
anything avoul, in the event the Japanese aittacked the
British and the Ducch.

Senator Ferguson: Well, 1 am trying to find ouv iromn
this witness. I he knew nothing about any policy why, I
would like to know, would he be sending & special messape
such as this.

Will you read the message now. Let?!s see whai is in it.
Then I can cover it and find out whether or not you knew
anything about policy.

Captain Kramer: (Reading)

"AMBASSADOR TSUBOKAMI IN BANGKOK ON 29TH SENT 10
TOKY0O AS WUMBER 872 THE FOLLOWING: YCONFERENCES NOW IN
PROGRESS IN BANGKOK CONSIDERING PLANS AIMED AT FORCING
BRITISH T0 ATTACK THAI AT PADANG BESSA NEAR SINGORA AS
COUNTERMOVE 710 JAPANESE LANDING AT KUI'A BHARU. SINCE THAL
INTENDS TO CONSIDER FIRST INVADER AS HER ENEMY, ORANGE -
vhich means Japan --"BELIEVES THIS LANDING IN MALAY WOOLD

FORCE BRITISH TO INVADE THAI AT PADANG BESSA. THAI WUOOLD
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Witness fLramer Questions by: Senacvor ?orguson

THEN DECLARE WAR AND REQUEST ORANGE HELP. '“HIS FLAN APr'EARS

TO HAVE APPROVAL OF THAI CHIEF OF STAFF BIJII'O. THAL
GOVERNMENT CIRCLES HAVE BEEN SHARPLY DIVIDED BETWEEN PRO-8R1I 1SE
AND PRO-ORANGE UNTIL 25 NOGVEMBER BUL NOW WANIT?O AND SHIF :
WHO FAVOR JOINT MILITARY ACTION WiITH ORANGE, AAVE SILENCED
ANTI-ORANGE GROUP ANDL INTEND 40 FORCE PREMIER FIBGL TO MAKA
A DECISION. JARLY AND FAVORABLE DEVELUPMENI'S ARE POSSIBLE."

Senator Ferguson: Now, if you knew of no policy that
wé hed -- how far was this from American possessions?

Captain Kramer: Senator, the prime reason for ever
having set up a crypt analytical unit at Corregiaor and ac
other times in certain pliaces in China, was Lo keep the
Commander in Chief Asiatic Fleet » &t That time Admiral Hart, ‘
as ruily apprised as possible of political, military ana
other developments of like nature in his aphere.

Senator Ferguson: How far wes tnis from the Fhullippines?
You didn't answer my question.

Captain Kramer: My gue'aa 18 propabiy BUU to a thousand
miles, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Now, look at tne message in Exhibit 2,
the message o' September 24, page 12.

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Where it sets up Pearl Herbor and

tells exactly what areas are to bo covered in tho futueo .
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wWituess Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
it asks Honoiulu vo tell wimt ships are tied up at wharves,
buoys und 1n docks. Are you familiar with that message ?
| Captain Kramer: 1 am, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Can you tell me why you would send
& message that involved cthe British and the Japanese a
cthousand miles from any of' our possessions directly to the
inrormation of Cincpac, which was Admirai Kimmel, and yet
this message, which sec up a plan of reari Harbor, indicating
wnat they wanted it for was wi atiagk laver, you didin*'t send
that out to either the Pacific or to the Asiatic Fleet,
ana here you were aendlné'one That involved & country a
thousand miles from our possessions.

Capta:n Kramer: I would like to invite the Senator's
attention to a4 piece of paper wiilch I believe is aun exaibplt
berfore this heariug, namely, a gist of the trafric disseminated
in early October 1941 vo ail recipients in tThe Navy Departmentc.
That gist was prepared by my section ana was asterisked us

being an item, & gist of this message, an iiem or special

inuverest, sir.
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Witness Krawer
Senator Ferguson: I would l1ike -~

Captain Kramer: I was not directed, and I do not
know whether any briefs of this message were ever to be
sent to Pearl Harbor. Your interpretation, Senator, that
this was a bombing wap, I do not believe, from conversa-
tions I had at the time in showing and‘going over days'
traffic with various recipients; I do not believe 1t was
interpreted by any of those persons as being materially
different than other messages concerning ship movements -
Peing reported by the Japanese diplomatic service.

I recollect that this was interpreted. 1 am uncer-
tain of the precise wording of the interpretation. This
was considered, and I believe it was, approximately, my
consideration at the time as being an attempt on the part
of the Japanese diplomatic service to slmplify communica-
tions.

That view 1s substantiated by many factors.

One is that the Japanese were repeatedly and con-
tinually directing their diplomatic service to cut down
traffic. They were repeatedly preparing and sending out
abbreviations to be used with codes already in existence.
Diplomatic codes were frequently asking for additional
funds for quarterly allotments, and so forth, to cover

telegraphic expenses. Thcse expenses were usually paid,

Questions by: Senator Ferguson

"
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| Witness Kramer Questions by: 3Senator Ferguson
h2 . and furnished in part vhen so requested by Tokyo. Those

L

and other considerations I think explain probably the

handling of this particular message, sir.
Senator Ferguson: Did you know that later they used
this map, this bombing map, in code messages? Say the
one on page 14 of November 18?7
Captain Kramer: Yes, sir. They used it for all
ship movements subsequently to setting up of this abbreviated

system of reporting ships in Pearl Harbor.

0
: J Senator Ferguson: You brought up a question about an

& exhibit in this case that indicated that they had given

information on this message on page 12, the bombing map

13
message. Will you get it for me? I think that 1s very

14 |
fimportant.

15
Commander Baecher: I might say, Senator, that that

-~ 0 AOTDVIMIAW JUAS & JAAW

16
was exhibited to a witness in the early stages of these

17
| hearings but was not introduced as an exhibit. I have a

18
copy hers on which I would like to write a short note to

18
l counsel, and hand it to him.

20
Senator Ferguson: Then it is not in evidence here,

2l

that this was ever briefed and sent out?

22
, Commander Baecher: That is correct.

23
Senator Ferguson: And the witness 1z wrong, and the

record in that respect should be corrected.

.




T R TR T

AR & ORAW

= O ACTIVNIRRAW

10

11

12

13

14

i8

1|9

20

el

22

23

ed

€5

11,102

Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Commander Baecher: At one time this document was

shown to another witness. I think Admiral Wilkinson.

This witness saw it alsc and he assumed it had gone into
evidence, and I think not improperly because it was passed
around.

Senator Ferguson: But it 1is notlin.evidence now,
so there 1is no evidence before us that the contents of
this bombing plot map had ever been sent out; is that
right? |

Commander Baecher: That is right. Here is a copy of
it.

Senator Ferguson: Now, Captain, will you turn to
page 15, the message which was translated on the 5th of
December:

"Please report on the following areas as to vessels
anchored therein: --"

You notice they want to know what ships are in the
harbor. Not what ones are going out end coming 1t.

"Please report on the following areas as to vessels
anchored therein: Area 'N? Pearl Harbor; Manila Bay, and
the areas adjecent thereto. Make your investigation with
great secrecy.’

Then the next message:

"Please investigate comprehensively the fleet - - - -
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L Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
hi : y bases in the neighborhood of the Hawaiian Military
’ Reservation.”
s | Next, translated on the 5th:

"We have been receiving reports from you on ship

" movements, but in future will you also report even vhen
- | there are no movements."

€ r Wasn't that a very Qignificant messagas, that the

s | Japanese were trying to ascertain what was 1n the barbor
6

and where they were located; whether there were any move-

10 ments or not?

I Didn't your Department or section evaluate those to

" mean that they were trying to ascertain what was in the

" | harbor and therefore when you received this one o'clock

& L delivery message and as you say you charted the globe

15

O AOTSMVIIMZAW JUA® 8 ORAW

time on it, wasn't it significant that it was 7:30 in the

o morning at Pearl Harbor?
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'Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguscn
{ Captalin Kramer: I have twe comments to make on your

|

3 | statement, Senator,

3 Senator Ferguson: That 18 not a statement., It 18 a
r
5 | question,

e | Captaln Kramer: The little message which you read, I

i —_F' - i - -

7 belleve that the original Japanese version in ungarbled form
|

8 || 1f &% were avallable would read: "Plegse investigate compre-

hensively" 18 probably "the fleet air bases."

L0 In other words, that blank refers to or represents a

. AT R M § A
<

11 garbled code group and was left blank by the Army t ranslator.

12 It undoubtedly refers to air or other types of bases than
13 fleet bases 1n the nelighborhood of the Hawallan military re-

14 servation, ‘On your other point, Senator --

e i el e = S T

O HMOTOHVIHEAW _UAT & ORAAW

15 Senator Ferguson: Just a mcment.

-
—-—

16 Captalin Kramer: On your peint, S enator, regarding evalu-
17 atlon, that was never at any time a funotion of my seoction,

18 81r.

TRty I L IR ALY ALS S

19 Senator Ferguson: Well, now, if they were to investigate

- —

20 comprehensively the fleet air bases didn't it even make the

21 || message more important that they were ccnosrned not with alone

22 the Fleet, where 1t was movinz, but they were concerned with
23 || the protection of the Fleet in the habor?

24 Captain Kramer: Not in the slightest, sir,

25 Senator Ferguson: Not in the slightest?

1
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'*w1tn9un Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

1
H
|
|

Capltain Kramer: No, sir. I would like to tell you why

| I make that reply.

| Senatar Ferguson: I wish you would,
l

Captain Kramer: Back in 1940, during the course of ne-

'gotiationa with the Dutoh in Java the Japanese shoehorn, if I

may use that term, was the delegation conducting those nego-
tiatlions and Ambassador or @peocial envoy, as I recall 1t, was
: named Yoshlzawa.
1~ Negotliations were condusted for a six or elght month
' period. During the period of those negotiations the Japanese
conduoted rather rigorous reconnaissance of all military
establishments pnot only in Java but in other islands of the
Dutch East Indies.

I mentioned that in some detail, but the same thing ap-

plies to military establlshments, air bases, fleet faoclllties,

| in Punama and in part of the Western hemlsphere under United
States Jurisdiction. The Japanese diplomatio service, as
| Well as thelir military gnd naval attaches abroad, were very

consclentious people and reported in meticulous detall all

| faots that they could learn of.

Senator Ferguson: Now, how do you account for the fact
that these ship movements, these locations were being ocalled

for in the latter part of November as things were getting

more orltical between the two couniriles? You told us about g

|

[i
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Questions bYy: Sen, Ferusaon

' Witness Kramer

Captain Kreuwer: genator, it would have been a mos?t weird

apanese military to not have palid close

ek but during praevious per-

ing 1941 and 1940 and earlier 10 every de-

United States Fleet.

imilar detall every ship movement into and

Weat Coast of the United States and

10 Panama, 81r.

Senateor Ferguson: Why were they wanting, though, to get

es that you now tell us thils message

14 means ?

Captain Kramer: They likewilse reported 1in great detall

vicinity of Seattle and Bremerton Navy

n the San Francisco area.

Senator Ferguson: Shoi me any such messages in the lat-

r Decgember in relation to San Fr ancisoco

10 and Seattle.

Captain Kramer: 1 offhand do not xnow of any such mes-

guyoh may possibly be elicited by a
that no further reports 1n guch de-

8ag8. gtudy of the filesa.

It may well be, however,

tall werse called for from the West Coast of the Unlted States

averything they wanted to.
rg 248 of

because they already knew

Senator rerguson: Wqll you refer Inew to pe&
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| Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

]

: | exhiblt 17 The messase 1s No, 25,850. It 1s at the top of
1
|

3 ;] the pasae. It is the one o'clock mesnagze. I want to read _:
|

4 you from page 167 of Top Secret of the Pearl Harbor Board in
& the Navy. Captain Safford is testlfying. He says:
6 i "Kramer took the message around, poessibly the other

mess8age which said, 'Submit our reply to the U.8., Gov=-

8 .i ernment at one P.M. on the 7th your time' and reached '
6 I the Chlef of Naval Operations arouhd 10:30 and then
10 next the “"hite House, where he agaln guve a copy to y

¥ | Admlral Beardall for the President and finally reached

12 the State Department about 11 o'olock with it. There

13 1s another matter" -- and this 18 what I want to mll

— - P -y T b -
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s 8 your attentlon to, but I wanted to read i1t in detail so
15 | that you would know what he was Talking about.

16 | "There 1s another matter which I would like to
170 add, that at the time Kramer submitted SIS 25,850" --
18 which 18 the one o'clock message-- "to Seocretary Knox

19 he sent a note in with it saying, in effeot, that this

20 means a sunrise attack on Pearl Harbor today and pog-
2 21 | 81bly a midnight attad on Manila,™

22 Now, what do you have to say to that?

23 | Senator Lucas: Who said 1t?

24 Senator Ferguson: Safford. Do You want to see the

<5 original of this recordiy
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

Captaln Kramer: No, sir, I do not. What I am looking

silr.

Senator Ferguson: Do I understand that you have a memo-
randum thers that youxmade of your conversations with Saf-
ford, or is that the reply?

Captain Kramer: No, sir. I am merely looking at a cooy

which I retained of my reply to Captaln Safford's first let-

ter.

, Senator Ferguson: All right.

Captain Kramer: I refer, Senator, 1n answer to your last

question to my reply, item 10-0 to Captain Safford, to the

4Lexpanded verslon of that reply which appears in the memorandum

I prepared for Admir:1l Halsey, which I will now read.

Senator Ferguson: Now, is this to be an answer to my

Fquestion?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,
Senator Ferguson: All right,
Captaln Kramer: A specific answer to your question,
fReading)
"10-0: On returning about 10:20 from Mr. Hull's
off ice the remainder of No. 02-10 were arrivinzy, includ-

ing the one setting the 1300 meeting time and the

'Weather Report'. Thege were delivered to all hands.

R i S R S DB . L RS IR o e il e, .

for 1s an item in my reply to Captaln Safford's first letter, |

B '_' . i il - " o TR T .
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen,Ferguson

including Mr. Knox and Mr,., Stimson, at Mr, Hull's of-

fice, with my comments to Mr, Knox on how the hour
tied with the sun and moves in progress elsewhere,"
All I can say, Senator, concerning Captain Safford's

testimony 18 that he apparently got all his information for

“ that reply from his interpretation of the wording of this

reply I Just read, or the abbreviated version of 1t, rather.

Senator Ferzuson: Now, wlll you Just read that again?

Captain Kramer: The last part is the pertinent part.

I will read that agalin, sir.
Senator Ferguson: Just read that azailn.
Captain Kramer: (Reading)
"These" -- referring to the messgges -- "were de-
livered to all hands, including Mr., Knox and Mr, Stim-
son, at Mr, Hull's office with my ooumahta to Mr. Knox
on how the hour tled with the sun and movements in
progress elsewhere," I
Senator Ferguson: All right. Now, with your comments
to Mr. Knox, that is what you are reading there?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,

Senator Ferguson: Now, how d4id you make those comments
to Mr. Knox?

Captain Kramer: Via hls personal alde, a foreign ser-

vice officer. I would like to point out, Senator, that --
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- Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson
2 Sanator Ferguson: Nothing in writing?

3 Captain Kramer : Nothing whatsoever in writing, no,sir,
1 Senator Ferguson: But you told him this?

5 Captain Kramer: The word got to him via hils foreign

8 || service officer, who when I was speaking to him was about

7 ten or fifteen feet away, just outside the closed door of

8 the room, Mr., Hull's office, where the three Secretaries were
0 conferring.

10 Senator Ferzuson: Who was Mr. Knox' forelign servioce

1] of fiocer?

12 Captain Kramer: There were four, Senator, who were

42 8 ACTaNIWMEAW UAS & JRAWwW
g

indootrinated and rotated --

14 Mr. Richardson: Who was the one that you gave the mes-
15 sage tol?

16 Senator Ferguson: Who was the one that you gave the

17 message to?

18 Captain Kramer: I do not know which one of the four 1t

10 was. I believe two of thcae were present that porning. As

20 to their names, I recollect three names of the four, - Gray,
21 Stone and Brown, because they assoclated with each other.

]
22 Senator Ferguaon:£¥ou.expeotad: that service officer to

23 tell Mr. Knox everything? You would expect that service of-

24 ficer to tell Mr. Knox everything that you said to him?

25 Captain Kramer: Th&t 1s what my intention was, yes air
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W itness Kramer Questicns by: Sen.Ferguson

Senator Ferguson: And everything that you sald to the
foreign servioe officer for Mr. Knox, that there was some-

thing about the men being at breskfast or at mess who were

‘ at Pearl Harbor at that time, he would convey that to Mr.

Knox then?

daptain Kramer: Not all those details, no, 81r.

Senator Ferguson: Now, walt a minute.

Captain Kramer: 1 have previously apaoirioallw'oovorod
that point, SenaloT, by stating that the reference to Pearl
Harbor was purely a passing reference for the beneflt of
non-naval personnel, namely, these foreign service of f loers
and the Army of f icer present.

Senator Ferguson: But you just told me in your last
answer that you expected thils foreign service off lcer %o
convey to Mr, Knox every word that you sald,

Captain Kramer: I did not expeot him to convey every
word but the egsential polinis of my explanatlon to him, 81ir.

Senator Fsrguson: Did you tell him not to convey to
Mr. Knox the idea thatl 1t was sunrise and these men would be
off duty at 7:i30 1n the morning?

captaln Kramer: Of sourse not, sir. My only reason for
the explanatlon was to have the glst or summary of my explana-

tion to convey to Mr. Knox.

Senator Ferguson: Did you tell him to only convay the
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

su:mmary of your explanation?

Captain Kramer: ‘I 414 not tell him which words to

8pegifi~ally convey, no, sir,

Now, didn't you antiocipate that he

| Senator Ferguson:

would convey the entire messaze to Mr. Knox?

Captain Kramer: The essentlial points of 1it, yes, sir.

Senator Ferzuson:

Why not all of it and let Mr. Knox

| be the Judge as to what wuse essential or not essential?

| Captaln Kramer: In the first place, Senator, I 1nd10£tod |

|| that I was not an evaluator of this material., I felt, how-
ever, that the essentlial points which I ocovered in that con-
versatlon should be pointed out to the foreign service off i-

cer, who in the same manner that I did for the Navy Department

high offlcolals handled those dcouments in the State Department

passlng 1t to the people who were permitted to see 1t.

Senator Ferguson: Captain Kramer, on many occasions

Secretary Knox had asked for your opinion because you were

? amllliar with the messagges, isn't that true?

Captain Kramer: Rarely my opinlion, sir. My comments in

the presence of Secretary Knox almost 8olely and entirely

4oonoerned an explanatlon on my part, often volunteered, oc-

CaB8lonally asked for, regarding particular names appearing in

f

the text, regarding references appearing therein and bsck-

"

R e S R e MG [ o L5 i~ i o e o p

| ground concerning obeoure points in the traffin.
~1'
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| Senator Ferguson: Now, as I understand 1t you 414 have

| this conversation with this foreign service officer and it

i wae Your intention for him to convey it to Mr. Knox?
| |

Captain Kramer: That is correoct, sir,
| ;

Senator Ferguson: Now, I am going to ask you this

l question, I am goling to read thils azaln:
"That at the time Kramer submitted SIS 25,850 to
| Seoretary Knox he sent a note in with it sayin3, 1in ef-
feot" -- now, that mo%e, as you say, would be a message
* through the foreign service offloer?

Captain Kramer; That word_“note' is apparently Captein
Safford‘s own construction of my sentence.

| Senator Ferguson: So instead of 1t belng 1in writing you

| sent 1t in verbally?
Captain Kramer: That 1s correoct, 8ir.
Senator Ferguson: (Reading)

"In effect that" -~ this 18 "in effect" -- *that
this means a sunrise attack on Pearl Harbor today and

possibly a midnight attack on Manila,"

Now, do I understand that you aswear now that that 1s not

a fact, thet st one?

Coptain Kramer: I swear to it, Senator, and have always

| 8worn that I never intended in the least to imply that *hoee

iremarka T made indicatoad an attack on Peairl Harbor or, in

i!

Witness Kramer Questirns by: Sen.Ferguson
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Witnees Kramenr Ques tione by: Sen.Ferguson

faot, any overt intention on the part of the Japanese directed

toward the United States.

denator Ferguson: I am not asking you what you intended.

I am asking you whether that is a fair substance of what you

sald to the foreign service offlcer?
Captain Kramer: It 18 not, Senator.
Senator Ferguson: All ritht, Then General Russell

asked this question of Safford:

|

"How do you know that?™ Reading from this tran-

" Bcrlptu
"Captain Safford: Kramer told me.

"General Russell: When did he tell you?

“Captain Sa fford: Kramer told me that Jjust before
he left Washington to go to Honolulu for duty. He had
not daréd' --

"General Frank: Which was when?

“Captain Safford: Which was the spring of 1943,

'#e= he had not\daned to let anybody know that
at that time.

"General Russell: Are there any further matters

’ about these messages now before we go to December the 7th

and the other messpges?"

Indicating that they had covered that gubject. So you

| se® that Safford aca 1n has testiflad thet 4An 1047 thet 49
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1 Witness Kramer Questicns by: Sen.Ferguscn
;|
, || what you told him.
3 h Captain Kramer: That 1s not what I told him at any time,
4 Senator.
5 | Senator Ferguson: But you told here when Mr. Richardson

Qa examined you what you told this foreign service offlocer, Your
7 answer to Mr. Rychardson was the substance of what you told

the foreign service offlocer o ornvey to Mr. Knox, 1is that

o || correot?

Captain Kramer: 1 was referring speocifically 1in my last

10

1 reply to the word :darod". 1 don't know where Captaly Safford

12 got that part of it,

13 Mr. Richardson: He is talking about what you told me.
14 | Captadn Kramer: I 4id onnvey to Captain S afford, I be-

5 lieve =~ I do not recall speocifisally, but to many of my con-

O ACTOWIHEAW JUAS & ORAWN

-

16 tacts, probably elgh® or ten or a dozen in the Navy Depart-

: 17 ment, chiefly subordinates, the subetance of what I told
{8 Jeoretary Hull's foreign service officer, yes, sir. I aleo

ﬂ 10 mentioned 1t to McCollum that morning.
20 Senator Ferguson: Did you tell them when you testifled
21 here in repiky to Mr.Richardeon'’s question, - did you tell
22 him what You s8ald?
3 Mr. fRichardson: Did you testify here about 1;: to me in

24 answer to my questions?

25 || Captein Kramer: Apout what questlon, sirt

e
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Witness Kramer Luestions by: Sen.Fergusocnn

Senator Ferguson: Apout what you had told the foreign

rs

. 3 | gervice off icer to tell Mr. Knox.
I . 1 | Captain Kramer: 1 did, gir.
5 Senator Ferguson: All rizt.
|
| ; 8 Mr. Rqchardson: That answers his question.
7 Senator Ferguson: How many deliveriea di1d ycu make of

8 messages on the gixth? You made one at nine at night?
o | Captain Kramer: Two that I recall, eir; it may have been

10 three. I could determine that, I 'believo. by a study of the

% i1 f1les simiar to the one I undertook provlously_ror you, 8ir,
. ; 12 Senator Ferguson: Yes. I am golng %o take that up

; 13 some with you later. So you made two or three dellverles on

; 14 Saturday’

i 15 Gaptain Kramer: Yes, 8ir.

” 16 Senator Ferguson: What wae the name of the seoretary to

17 Mr. Knox that was at the apariment at the Wardman? What was

1a || the name of that secretary? You sald there was a secretary.
19 Captain Kramer: He had been a secretary.

20 Mr. Richardson: What was his namef?

21 Captain Kramer: I belleve 1t was Mr. Keefe, sir. 1 am

22 not oertain of that.

23 Mr. Rychardson: All right.
24 | Captain Kremer: In any ocase he can be identifled as
25 | at that time being, I believe, the munsxer of tha Chinaon

- — — T ———

e
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson

Dally Now?.

The Chairman: John O'Keefe.

Senator Forgﬁéon: John O'Keefe, the Senator tells me.

Now, have you named all of the officers of the Army, the
Navy or the Marines that you hgve talked your teotimony over
with in relation %o pearl Harbor since the tlme that you
;ga;lfied before the Navy Board?

| Cﬁptaln Kramer: As to detalls, yes, gir.

genator Ferguson: Well, are there any other offlicers that
you have discuseed 1t with not as to detall?

Captain Kramer: Yes, 8ir, there are.

Senator Fergueon: And will you name them?

Captain Kramer: Colonel Laswell, Commander Rennilock,
Commander Benediot, Commander Hudson. In any ozse offlosrsa
attached to the Fleet radlo unit at Pearl Harbor who were
long-standing friends of mine and working in this kind of work.

Senator Ferguson: Did you ever discuss 1t with Bratton?

Ceptain Kramer: Not that I have any reccllectlon of,
gir.

Senator Ferzuson: You have had no conversations what-
ever with Bratton about the tes timony or about the Pearl
Harbor mattert

C aptain Kramer: No, 8ir,

Senator Ferguscon: Since the Navy Board?
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| ¥itness Kramer Quesetions by: Sen.Ferguson

Captain £Lramer: Either before or after the Navy Board,

I| sir.

Senator Ferguson: Did you dlscuss 1t with Baeocher?
l Captain Kramer: There was some discussion oconcerning
the availability of records to which I for the first time had
ﬂaooosa'in December last year and chiefly my disnussion with
| Baeoher was concerning appointments with counsel for this
committee and Mr. Baecher. Detalls occoncerning the ocontent of

my prior testimony or of testimony I would give I did not dis-

cuss with Mr. Baecher.

Senator Ferguson: And he asked you nothing about any of

the points that you have covered?

Captaln Kramer: No, seir.

Senator Ferguson: Can you tell me Just what the ococasion
was that you took these letters to him and the Halsey memo-
randum? Had he asked ycu or did you Just volunteer that?

Captain Krumer: I volynteered that, sir,

Senator Ferguson: There wasn't any request?

Captain Kramer: No, sir, it was not.

Senator Ferguson: Well, you were greatly worrled, were
you not, some time 1in September and October, you were worried?

Captaiq Kramer: Of what year, sir?

Senator Ferguscen: This last year, 1945,

| Captain Kremer: About what. gir?
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£816 | Witness Kramer Guestione by: Sen.Ferguscn
|
2 Senator Ferguson: Well, I am Just askinz you whether you
. 3 i were werried?
|

4 Captain Kramer: Not that I have any recollection of,

5 no, sir,

8 Senator Lucas: Unless it 18 about Pearl Harbor I think
7 || 1% 18 an improper question to ask him.

8 ; Senator Ferguson: This is in rélation to Pearl Harbor

© ||or I would not have asked him,
10 TL Senator Luocas: You said "about anything".

T Captain Krawer: I had some concern about my health., I

12 don't think I recall any worry, sir,

~UAS A OsAW

3 13 | Senator Ferguson: There was nothing worrging you at that
; 14 time that you went to the hospital?

E 15 Captain Kramer: No, sir, there was not.

: 16 Senator Ferguson: Did you know that a letter had been

17 written to your wife requesting her to crme up on acoount of

18 |you worrying about scmething?
10 Captain Krumer: With résp2ct to my health, yes, sir,

20 Senator Ferguscn: Well, no worrying about Pear] Harbor,-

21 Or not Pearl Harbor but having something on your ming that

22 ||Jou were greatly concerned with?

23 Senator Lucae: Mr. Chairman, I think this 1s a highly

24 improper question to ask this witness.

25 | Senator Ferguson: Tt onlv relatafg tn Ponrl Honham
I

llllllllllllllllllllllllllll-I-F-l--p---------:,............-..........
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H Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen.Ferguson
1
|

"N

9 Captain Kramer: I am willing to answer that question.

3 | Senator Lucas; WYell, I know, but there 18 a limit to

4 everything. The Senator from Michizan now is asking this

5 question about whether the witness was worrying about any-

0 | thing.
7 l Senator Ferguson: No, about Pearl Harbor.
8 || Senator Luocas:--- But you don't go back to Pearl Harbor.

0 If you oonfine it to Pearl Harbor, all right.
10 Captain Kramer: I would like, Senater Lucas, to answer

11 that Question.

(>

The Chalrman: The chair thinks the witness 1is willing

—
* a
o

to answer that qQuestion and probably can do so satisfaotorily.
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Shaok l Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
3{1:; | “ Captain Kramer: At no time while I was in the Naval
- . | Hospital at Bethesda, either for the check-up during August
’ or for my subsequent stay in the hospital in September
) ' or October, did I have any worries or concern about what I
: knew about Pearl Harbor, or any discussions with anyone
; about either my prior testimony, or what I knew about
' Pearl Harbor.
g ] I did has a brief discussion, which I have previously
: j indicated in my testimony, with a classmate cof mine, namely,
. 5 Commander Powell, to the effect -- snd this bears partlicu-
% B : larly on your question, sir -~ that I wight be celled as
" % " e witness befcre the contemplated Congressionsal hearing.
% " " Senator Ferguson: That is what I aw telking about,
i & Pearl Harbor.
- = Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.
> t Senator Ferguson: I am not talking sbout anything alse.
= Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.
IB Senator Ferguson: All right.
19 ' Now you had some soncern as to whether or not you
= E would be called as a witness?
i E Captain Kramer: No concern whatsoever, sir. It was
¥ !F simply a conversaticn in which Halsey mentioned, I belisve,
fj ? as I now recollect it, something to the effect that I was
: % working on things cornccted with Pearl Harbor ir Wedington
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Witness EKramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
at that time. |

Senator Ferguson: Did you appreciate at that time
that your testimony, that is, your so-called affidavit
vhich you say now you did not swear to, but you considered
it as such, that if you died, it was to be taken as your
evidence in any case in which it might arlse, and what you
said at the Pearl Harbor Board, that there may be a conflict
in those two statements?

Captain Kramer: I was unavere of any such conflict, sir.

Senator Ferguson: And therefore, there vas no concern
over the fact that you had a memorandum, and you had also
testified in relation to the matter before the Pearl Harbor
Board?

Captain Kramer: That is precisely correct, sir,

Senator Ferguson: You had also testified before thse
Hevitt committee. Now, was there any concern over the fact
that there may be a conflict between your testimony, that
is, your memorandum and your testimony before the Pearl
Harbor Board, and your testimony before the Hewith committee?

Captain Kramer: None whatsoever, sir. I at no tine
had concern ebout the few facts with which I was familiar
concerning Fsarl Harbor.

Senator Ferguson: And, a&s I understand it, as far

es you vere concerned, there vere nc conflicts between those
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| Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
h3 ’ | three?
e Captain Kramer: That is correct, sir.

J Senator Ferguson: Were you concerned over your testi-

" | mony before this Board, that it might conflict with one or

more of the testimonies that you had given?

l Captain Kramer: DNone whatsoever, sir. In fact, it

l wvas not until I began studying these documentis in December
i last, that I was aware of such conflicts.

Senator Ferguson: When did you diacover that there

|
i vere som® conflicts?

Y Captain Kramer: I learned of certain minor discrep-

12

~ Q. ACTOHM IHEAW JUAS A OAAW

ancies. such as the fact that I had previously testifled

'* | that Commander Wellborn vas in Admiral Stark's office on

4 | Sunday morning, but it appeared to be not true, inasmuch
as Commander Wellborn was not in ths Navy Department on
Sunday, or at least Sunday morning at all, during the lunch-

eon engagement which I previously testiflied to at Admirsal

L8

Stark’s home in talking with Captain MeCollum.

- |
. Senator Ferguson: I do not want any more detail on

|| that, because you have slresdy -covered that; isn't that

i’ s . true?

- Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Now, will you prssent here to the

committee the papers and the documents that you say yon
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
have examined, and which have caused you to make some
alteration or some change from your previous testimony,
or statements?

Captain Kramer: I can refer in that foupect, sir,
only to the Navy Nerrative, all of which I have not read,
and part of my testimony as set forth in the tranascript
of the Naval Court of Inquiry. Nothing else whatsoever,
aside from the JD files, which I studied a Tow days ago,
which I saw a week ago Saturday.

Senator Ferguson: That brings us to the JD flles,
and I would -1like to get them now.

Mr. Richardson: Where are they?

Sénator Ferguson: Is he in the phone booth again?

Commander Baecher: Which ones, Captain Kramer?

Senator Ferguson: 7001, and ths ones he refreshed
his memory from. I want to see what he used to refresh his
memory .

Commander Baecher: The JD flles go back & long wvay,
Senator. They are a vast volume,

Senator Ferguson: I want to see the "iles that thlas
witness e mmined, from which he has made c;.ertuin alterations.
Gapﬁain.Kramar: The 7000 file.

Senator Ferguson: Are they here?

Commander Baecher: I will go on the phone booth slir,
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
h5 { Captain Kramer: Probably from 6500 on.

* The Chairman: Maybe the flles are in the booth.

Senator Ferguson: I notice in this testimony I r2ad

here this morning that Safford says you told him that on

Sunday morning you delivered these copies to Admiral Beardall

{ for the President.

7
‘ . Does that refresh your memory that he was 1n charge
£ !
| of the White House map room?
0
| Captain Kramer: It does not, sir.
d
10
l Any implications of that kind may have been gained
3 4
< 11 l
o from the fect that I indiceted it had gone to Admiral
v 12
' 3 | Beardall’s situation room for the President in the White
3 13 -
. i House,
T b
s I % i
g Senator Ferguson: Have you got Exhibit 142 before you?
b Y
15
: Captain Kramer: The materisl relating to the winds
16
code, sir?
|
Senator Ferguson: Yes, 1t 1s relating to the winds
18
code. Just a few questions on the winds code.
10
l What did you hand counsel?
20
Captein Kramer: A brief on that study I showed you
I L
21 |
| a couple of days ago, sir. It is rather not a orlef, but
22
! a smooth form of 1%T.
23 |
Senator Ferguson: Look at this page, at the 7,023.
24 ||
Will you vefer to the 7,024, 7,025, the date of message
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Witness Kramer anntiani'by: Jenator Ferguson

ond October 1941, date of translation 12/4/41.

M e

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,

Senator Ferguson: Do you have thatpage with those

messages on?

Captain Kramer: I have, sir.

Senator Ferguson: How do you account for the long

delay in the translaticons? Were they purple?

4 Captain Kramer: They were not sir.

Senator Ferguscn: That would account for them r.ot

I being translated?

Captain Kramer: The 7,023, 7,024, and 7,025 that you

just read were all in the system known as JIG 19, which

required delay in the recovery of keys.

Senator Ferguson: And that 1s what accounted for the

delay?

Ceptain Kramer: Yes, sir. Many keys, in fact, ve

never recovered.

Senator Ferguson: All right. Let me have Exhibl?y 2,

again.

—— —— | r— -

l Those messages I show you, do you have the ones from

12 on?

Yes, sir.

Captain Kramer:

Senator Ferguson: What were they 1in?

Captain Kramer: It is not apparent from Exhibit 2,
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! Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
h7 ' h what system they were in, sir. That could be determined

by further study of this JD file, however.

Senator Ferguson: Well, would you not say that the
’ l delay in those was due to the fact that you did not have
> | the xeys?
. Captain Kramer: I cannot tell without knowing the |
? system, sir. :
5 u Senator Ferguaoh: But you can specifically state that
. on 7,023, 7,02%, 7,025, and so forth, that is true?
- Ciptain Kramer: Yes, sir, because I have on my
e copy of Exhibit 142, a brief notation of the system. I
12

do not know from Exhibit 2 which JD fil number these Army

13
il translations were, except the last one,

14 *
t Senator Ferguson: Does anyone from the Army here have

15 i

g MOTOMIMIAW . JUAS & CRAW

the data that they were to get me on 900 and 901, the time

-
e

16
of the translastion and the other things from the work sheet?

17
Colonel Duncombe: Mr. Richardson gave yoOou a memo-

18
randum on that.

]

19
l Senator Ferguson: This only covers 900, I will read

20 1

this into the record:

<l

S g —

"11 February 1946.

"Memorandum for Mr. Richardson:

| "Examination of the Signal Intelligence filles discloses

that Tokyo to Washington message #900, dated 6 December, 1941,
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Witness Kramer Questions Dby: Senator Ferguson
vas intercepted by Army station No. 7 (Fort Hunt, Virginia)

at 1212 GMI" --

That 1s Greenwich Mean Time, 1s 1t? }_

Captain Kramer: Greenwich Mean Time. |

Senator Ferguson (coqtinuing): " _. on 6 December
(7:12 a.m. Washington time). The message Was delivered to ﬂ
3IS by courier and was decoded by SIS at 11:07" -

Apnd they have then got me" and at the bottom they
have got & ster and they say: Time stamp indistinct - not
clear whether ig.m.' or ‘p.m.’

(Continuing); _ " 6 December.

3o it would be either gt 11:07 in the porning, or
11:07 in the evening.

"Phe followlng summary of the messag?® was written on
the decode sheet, iDomei chief prailses Kato for good
reportage’. The measage Was not rurther disseminated."

Now, that ceme in immediately. Well, 1t came in with,

as 1 am informed with 901, at least 1t has a number before

gol, so it would be very significant as to whether or not
that was translated in the worning or in the evening, and
it it was translated at the same time that 901 was trans-
1ated. 901 bears the date of transletion on December 6.
Now, I come back to the ppint: How does 1t come

about that this very, very important pilot messocge, which
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Questions by: SQnator.Ferguaon

is translated on the 6th, was not delivered on the 6th,

or early on the morning of the 7th, with the first de-

livery?

Captain Krawer: I cannot account, Senator, for the

handling of ths message by the Army. From the study I

made faor you a few days ago, my best knowledge and present

conviction is that my section in the Navy Department did

not receive 1t until approximately 10:25 or 10:30 Sunday
morning, sir.

Senator Ferguson: And when I get the file we are
going to go over it so you can tell me what is in the
file to refresh your memory. So that you have changed

your testimony, as I understand it, that you delivered it

on the night of the 6th, your first testimony?

C.ptain Kramer: I don't bellieve I have changed that
testimony materislly, sir, inasmuch asany testimony on
this point presviously, including in this hearing, in any
such testimony I have indicated my doubt of when that
thing was delivered.

Senator Ferguson: Do you have doubt now?

Captain Kramer: Not after a study of this file, no,

sir.

Senator Ferguson: All right. That is why I want the

file here.
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Questions by: Senator Ferguson

1 am reading from page 17 of the Clark report,
Bratton's testimony:

"When we received the Japanese message concerning
the code to be used in weather broadcasts, T discussed the
matter with my opposite number in the Navy, Commander
McCollum, and his assistant, Lieutenant Commander Kramer.
They informed me that the matter was with their man in
Hawaii, that he had all the information that we had and
the same intercepts. They stated that he could explain
in detail to the Commanding General, or his G-2 the
significance of the code, and suggested that our G-2 in
Hawaii get in touch with Commander Rochefort immediately
as a means of saving time. In other words, we could get
the desired information to the Commanding General in
Hawaii or his G-2, much faster and in much greater detall
and with far greater securlty than by means of a long in-
volved explanatory messege that we wvould have been Torced
to send through the Army communications system, "

Do you remember that conversastion with Bratton?

Capte~n Kramer: I have no recollection of that con-
versation, nor do I have any vrecollection of such a message
being sent.

Senator Ferguson: Did you see General Msrshall on

the 6th or the 7th?
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Captain Kramer: I did not, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Not to deliver to him anything,
but just see him?

Ceptain Kramer: No, sir.

senator Ferguson: You know you did not ses him?

Captain Krauer: T know that, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Now, T will come to one wmessage,
and I will try to be short on 1it.

If you just tried to keep to answers as short as you
can, ve will gat through sooner.

Captain Kramer: I will try, Senstor.

Senator Forguaon; Did you ever Know that the Army
had set up & similar system to yours, not using cards,
but using sheets of paper?

C:iptain Kramer: No, sir, this is my first knowledge
of that, sir.

Senator Ferguson: YoOu d1d not know that that was set
up the same way in the Army?

Captain Kramer: No, sir, mot in the least.

Senator Ferguson: DBut you did know that the system
being used in the Ravy was by means of these cards, and
telephone conversations?

Crptain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Had you ever on &any other occeslion
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
set up a system vhereby you were to deliver messages by
means of a card system like this, and telephone conversa-
tion?

Captain Kramer: That was the first and only instance
of which I am aware, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Now, was Admiral Noyes able to
translate Japanese?

Captain Kramer: No, sir.

Senator Ferguson: When did you first hear that the
winds message that you saw on the 5th -- you place it as
the 5th?

Cu.ptain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: The winds execute message, when
did you first hear that that was phoney?

Captain Kramer: I never heard that, sir. I reached
that conclusion myself, commencing sometime in early
December of last year, after I commenced a study of these
documents, including those interrogations conducted in
Japan last fall.

Senator Ferguson: Now wait. Do I understand that you
have drawn this conclusion that it was a phoney from the
Japanese messages, that they never sent it out?

Captain Kramer: I have, sir. I thought I had

clearly indicated thaet in prsvious testimony.
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson
Senator Ferguson: In the same message that the

Japanese claim they never saw the winds execute message,
they deny ever having set up th® means of sending it
out, and do you now claim --

Captain Kramer (interposing): I am unfamiliar with
that, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Will you show me what you draw that
conclusion from?

Captain Kramer: I believe it is in interrogation
No. 11, or it may be No. 10, conducted by part of General
MacArthuris staff.

Senator Ferguson: I wish you would get me that file,
because they deny having sent either 2353 or 2354,

Mr. Richardson: What difference does it make? He
seid he read it and based his conclusion on it. You have
a right to bring thatin, of course, but 1t does not do any
good to call his attention to that question, except to
have it go into the record.

' I agree they say they never did send 1t.

Senator Ferguson: You now say you did not see the
Japanese deny sending out the original two code messages,
that they would set 1t up in that wmanner?

Captain Kramer: That did not imprsesss me at the time,

if it is included in that interrcgaticn, sir, because 1
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

know that they did.
Senator Ferguson: iAndhthoréroro vhen the Japanese
say they did not send out the execute message, you came
to the conclusion that it was phoney? The one that you
saw?
Captain Kramer: It was not solely on that, sir,
Senator Ferguson: Well, what else was it based on?
Captain Kramer: On many other aspects of this so-called
winds system, sir,
Senator Ferguson: What aspects, solely on this quesa-
tion that this was a phoney that you saw on the teletype?

Captain Kramer: I havé clearly indicated, I think,

Senator, that I was thoroughly convinced at the time I saw
that teletype that it was an authentic winds messaga.

Senator Ferguson: I do not think there is any doubt
but what that is your testimony.

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: You thought it was authentic?

daptaiﬁ.Kramor: Yes, sir.

Senato? Ferguson: And up until you saw the Japanese
messages from Japan to MacArthur, you felt all the time
that it was authentic, and then you ceme to the conclusion
that it was a phoney?

Captain Xramer: That was very likely it, sir. I do

not know st+411 yhes-..

£ A
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l
hl5 | Senator Ferguson: All right. |
' ; Now, we have diluted it so it very likely was, and

you do not know whether it was or was not.

Captain Kramer: That is correct, sir.

N 3 Senator Ferguson: Now have you any other e vidence E
’ that weakened it, and brought you down to the conclusion E
; i that it may have been a phoney? I would like to see it, i
v if you have any other evidence. I
> ' Captain Kramer: No other specific evidence that I

10 ||

| can recall now, sir,

11
Senator Ferguson: All right.

12

TNYd 9§ QY N

Captain Kramer: It was Jjust a general conclusion I

I3 |
came to.

& TR . L i R A I e TR wall T ealkTEmr T L 2

14 |
‘ Senator Ferguson: Do you know whether or not there

were any other winds execute messages, other than the

2 8 "MOLONIHSYAM

&

one you saw, that ever came in on the teletype?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir, there were a number, which
I8

|
l
l
16 !

a()

proved to be false alarms in each case.
Senator Ferguson: And on those occasions, you demon-

@ strated they were false alarms?

\w

i Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: But no undertaking was aver made

to determine that the one you saw was not a legitimate

erecute message?

- e
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

Captain Kramer: My understanding was that such a
study was undertaken,

I should 1like to be more specific on that Senator,
in case it does not appear clear to you.

Senator Ferguson: I do not want hearsg at this parti-
cular time,

Captain Kramer: No, sir, I am talking from first
hand knowledge now, sir.

There were as many as three or four hundred weather

reports received during that 10-day period.
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wWitness Kramer Questions py: 3Senator ferguson

Senator Ferguson: I am only talking about the tele-
typed weather reports.

Ceptaln Kramer: That is what I am talking about, sir.

Senator Ferguson: Let us keep to that.

Captain kramex': Over and above that tiere were the
FCC voice broadcasts.

Senator Ferguson: 1 am not talking about that, onliy
about the ﬁeletype.

Captain Kramey: I wlll leave that out. “Those which
I examined, wnich consisted of two or inree during night
hours and probably & haif-dozen durilng daylight hours, on
each occasion I saw tne rull sneet of teletype, inciuding
the whole of' the Japanese news broeacasts, and examined
the weather report coutained tnerein as to the charsctur-
istics calied f'or by the Jjapanese weatcher code sjsten.
The piece of' teletupe 1 saw cuan & December was a short pilece
of teletype. A1l these other weather 1eoports 1 have rc-
ferred to, severai hundred in number, were examined by the @)
vatch officer and determination made as to authenticiiy.

In this particular case 1| was shown & plece oi' te.e.ype
paper torn off of tne long strip, and my presumption was
that the (Y walch ofricer had made the determination I nave

Just outlined. I remesmber nis showing 1t to me and

accompanying him, and my oniy check was as to the wording.
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Witness Xramer Questions by: Senator Ferguson

Senator Ferguson: You have gone over that before.

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senavor Ferguson: Now what 1 want to know 1is whether
or not in the Department, prior Lo the attack, there had
been any survey, which you have personal knowleage or', that
the winds execute message thai you saw was a false cne?

Captain Kramer: No, sir, not that I am aware of, sir.

Senator rerguson: 7That 1s ali I want to get at.

You have nanded me tnis sheet. As soon as 1 can get
the original file 7001 and the others 1 wand you to point
out on the files themselves what there is that caused you
To want to make certain statements in relation to a change
in your testimony.

No& can I asx Commander Baecher whetner we will have
this?

Commander Baecher: That wili be nere at 1:30.

Captain Kramer: I have & photostat of that sheet, 17
you: wouid 1l1like vo aeé 1%, sir.

3enator Ferguson:ls this an original?

Captain Kramer: I prepared thasc.

Seénator Ferguson: I want ithe whole fiie, 1 want o
g0 through it wiih you. 1 have no other questions atl the

present time, except this iast 118l One --

Mr. Murphy: wmr. Chairman, may I make a correction:
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Senatox rerguson

l Tne Chairman: Just a minute.
J Senator Ferguson: Do you know of any other statements

now, or any other inf'ormation that you reel in any way will

+‘ help or ald this committee in ascertaining the facts in
relation to the Peirl Harbor catastrophe?

' * Captain Kramer: 1 have not, ;enator. Tii0se papers
which have been introduced in the last few days are the
only thing, in my best knowledge and beller, that mignt,

by any con&tructién, be considered as bearing on this 1issue.

Senaitor Ferguson: And there are no other papers orx

memoranda wrllten by you, up until the cime you took the

I dA 8 Onrvman

witness stand, that are outstanding at the present time?

Capiain Kramer: Tnhat is precisely correct, sir.

— e

- Senator Ferguson: So we are not quibbling on that

vord “memorandum”, or anything else?

165

Capiain Kramer: No, sir, there are not.
Senator Ferguson: And as soon &8 i can get that f'1le

I will close.

{173

Mr. Murphy: May I make one correction in the 1record?
The Chairman: Yes, sir.

i |
. | Mr. Murphy: (m page 10,927 there is rererence oii two

(v

, occasions To a ievier. The letter I was referring to wuas
<3 '

the letier written by Admiral Kirmel. The record shows

i Admlrai Wilkinson. I ask tnat "Wilkinsoa" pe changed to

4 |




witness Kramer

"Kimmel" on page 10,927 .
The Chairman: Very well. It is now 1‘2:30, and we

will recess to 1:30.

(Whereupon, at 12:30 o clock p.m., the conmitiee
recessed until 1:30 o'clock p.m. of the same day.)
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AFTERNCON SESSION 1:30 P, X,

The Vice Chairman: The committee will pl-ase be

1n'ordor.

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN ALWIN D. KRAMER

(resumed)

Senator Ferguson: Captain Kramer, I spoke to you this-
l

morning about the messate of the 24th of September 1941 and
L we left 1t hang in the balanae because you said 1t had been
1hpointed out in some way where the 318t of 1t was determined
| and then I left it because I did not know what you were re-

ferring to, I had not seen what yru were referring to.

s
B
T
0
5
.
<
o
R

Now, at the noon hour I have re ceived three pages and

one 18 a oopy of page 12 in exhibit 2, it I micht come near

3 ADTOVIMHZAW

there and refer to this exhibit and we will straighten this

-
"

| matter ou.

Now, page 12 18 the so-cailed bomb plot of Pearl Harbor.
The Vice Chairman: Is that paze 12 of exhibit 27
Senator Ferguson: Of exhibit e

Now I shew you what 18 a photostatic copy of that mes-

|| 8age with the exception of "Original copy" in longhand writ-
ing at the top. Is that ocorrect?

Captain Kramer: Yes, sir.

Senator Ferguson: A4nd the word “Secret” was in blaok

| and then there 4e "Ip Secret-Ultre" in red. 1Is that cor-
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'reot?

S

3 | Captain Kramer: Sir,at the time that message was dis-

4 éeminated the only thing that appeared was the "Seoret" at
5 the top and I belileve at the bottom. The "Top Seoret-Ultra"
6 was net on it.

A

- Senator Ferguson: Dg ybu Know whén the words "Top 300-1
8 rlret-Ultra" was put on top?

o | Captain Kramer: That has presumably been done at some
10 time subsequent to Pearl Harbor, eir, by a new custodian of
11 the files,

{2 Senator Ferguson: "“Top Secret-Ultra." What ia the

-~ JAS & TRMN

14 "Ultra"? 1Is that the purple code?
Captain Kramer: No, 8lr, that was a code developed in

(5 1942, I believe, applying to this crypt-analytizal work.

- 3 ATTDAIMBAW
-—

18 Senator Ferguson: Now, at the bottom is a stamp and it
17 has 1012-I, 2-0P-G, MIG, BE, B" what 1s that?

18 Captain Kramer: Pound sign, sir,

19 Senator Ferguaon: Pound aign. "AF, XY, MONO," 1Ig

20 that correct?

21 Captain Kramer: Yes, sir,

22 Senutor Ferguson: Wwhat 18 that §lamp on the bottom of

21 that message?

s | Captain Kramer: That was a stamp we commenced us ing

25 || in the fall of 1941 to indicate interestinz and important
i .
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Witness Kramer Questions by: Sen, Ferguson

messages. 1t wWgB gstamped qn by the yeoman at the same time
when he was appiylng the JD file number to 1%, but was not
always done; there werse some daye Wwe gekipped it for lack of
‘+ime. When 1t was on there, and agaln 1if I had time to

do so, I would oirocle those symbols to insure that items of
interest to the people OTr organs represented by those sym-
bols were apprised.

gJenator Ferguson: All right. Now on the original page

12 of exhibit 2 that stamp does not appear?

Captaln Kramer: No, 81r,

Senator Ferguson: This photostatic COpPY is a photostatio
copy of whatl now appears in the Navy Department as far as
page 12 of exhibit 2 is oconcerned?

Captain Kramer: Yes, 8ir. That was only used by Navy.

Senator Ferguson. Yes. Now, did you circle anything on ﬁ
any of those numbers indicating that they should be of B8pec- .
1al interest to themt

Captain Kramer: There 18 nothing circled on this plece
of paper, no, 8ir.

Senator Ferguson: Now, the next p,ge thatl was in this
exhibit 18 "Top Secret-Ultra" both 4in black print and red
stamp . 18 that correot?

Captain Kramer: Yes, gir,

Senator Ferguson: "GZ routling gystem." That would 1ln-




